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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Spoton Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Spoton Logistics Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Aet™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
*Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 6 to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
regarding the goodwill recorded pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (‘the Scheme’) for amalgamation
of Vankatesh Pharma Private Limited ( ‘the transferor Company”) and Spoton Logistics Private Limited
(‘the Transferee Company’), which has been described in the aforesaid note. The Scheme has been
approved by the NCLT vide its order dated 27 November 2019 with an appointed date of 30 August
2018 and a certified copy has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, on
10 January 2020, We further draw attention to the fact that in accordance with the Scheme approved by
the NCLT, the Company continues to amortise Goodwill over a period of 5 years in the Standalone
Financial Statements, which overrides the relevant requirement of Ind AS 103 *Business Combinations”
and Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ (according to which acquired Goodwill is not permitted to be
amortised and is required to be tested annually for impairment). The financial impact of the aforesaid
treatment has been disclosed in the Note 6 to the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ar error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

«  Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2020 included in these financial statements, are
based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for
the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 dated October 31, 2021 and February 12, 2021
respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report thal:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2022;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the standalone financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracls including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
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otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941 A i)
UDIN: 2209494 | AJUAQA9282 Ny O
Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2022
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Spoton Logistics Private Limited (“the Company™)

a)

b)

d)

a)

b)

iii,
a)

b)

c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years
which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The
quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

During the vear the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partmerships or any
other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the year the investments made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e,
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vi.

vii.

d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f)  The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifving any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(F) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is a private company and satisfies the conditions for exemption from the
provisions of section 185 prescribed in notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, the provisions of section 185 do not apply to the Company.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of sections 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments and, guarantees, and security have
been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to it though there are slight delays in professional tax.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by vs. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the vear end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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viil.

ix.

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount (Rs) | Period 10 Forum where | Remarks, if
statute dues which  the | the dispute is | any
amount pending
relates
The Finance | Service tax, 600 Mn FY 2012- | CESTAT -
Act 1994 Interest and 2017 Bengaluru
L Penalty

Note: During the previous years, the Company has deposited Rs 14 Mn and a further amount
of Rs. 16 Mn in current year under protest in connection with a dispute with service fax
authorities for the year 2012 -2017.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures.

f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement 10 report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clanse
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

xi.

xii.

xiit.

xiv.

XV,

xvi.

a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT —4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the vear.

a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

¢) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore. the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit Committee
as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, as explained to us, the
Company satisfies the conditions for exemption from the provisions of section 188 prescribed
in notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and therefore, the
provisions of section 188 do not apply to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report
on clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause (xvi)a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement 1o report on clause

xvil,

xviii.

XiX.

XX,

3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as o the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, provisions of section 135 of companies act 2013 does not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xx) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

r Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership No.: 09494
UDIN: 2209494 | AJUAQA9282
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SPOTON LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Spoton
Logistics Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalong
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAL™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference o these
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material efTect on the financial statements. pmm
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference o Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
1o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control aver financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associales LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: L0 1049 W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941 :
UDIN: 22094041 AJUAQA9282 s
Place of Signature; New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2022
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Lense linhilities 4 25098 B4 45 54456
Provisions 0 6499 56,05 5472
Deferred tox lhabilities inct) 8 . 37.61 20714
Totul non-current liabiities 1.421.06 1, 79360 _ 193217
Current lishilities
Finnncial lasilities
Bomowings 7 57264 T03.33 BAEID
Lense linbilitics a 3233 R R 7] 28068
Trade pryables
Total outstanding dues of milero emerprises and smnll enterprises 1% 14,03 1539 6,62
Toal mm:rbfcmdimnuhurlhﬂ tmikcro enterprises and 18 1,230.32 134427 860,12
sl enterprises
Cinher finnncial Tabilities L 23153 120.T0 93.50
Provisions 20 27.04 InH4 .39
Other curnent linbilities 21 117.03 29.568 15.17
Total current liabilitics 117691 1.557.13 2.161.57
Total Habilities 3,690.87 4,350.74 4,083.74
Total eqquity and limhifiies Iét!.ﬂ H;l.ﬂ _ﬂﬂ
Summary of Significant necounting policies i3

T ncoompanying notes are an integral part of the Finnacial Statements
mwmmu{mdmuhcbd;

For 5.1, Bailibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors af
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Spoton Legistics I'rivate Limbted
Sgatement of Profit nnd Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
Al amaini in INR Millians undess athewise stated)

Particulars Mabes For the year ended Far the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Ingpme

Hevense from contracts with coslomers ] 2,969,089 762068

Other imcome n .31 2573

Tatal ncame (1) Iw 744741

Expenses

Freight, handling and servicing cost k| 730869 572761

Emyleryes benefils axpetne 5 1,068.00 TaLm

Finance coshe % &45.19 36542

Depreciation and smortization expense n TETE 00,79

Orther expenses - 489,85 38518

Tatal expenies {11 10.118.50_ 170

Lo before exceptional lteis and tax (11T= (B 1] (56100 (323.65)

Exceptioeal lbems (TV) 30 17.58

Loss before tax. (V=I11-1¥} (74.08) (32L.65)

Tax expense, comprising: L ]

Canrent fax 145,09 15z

Digfierred tax (66,681 {170.04

Total tax expense (V1) 7841 [CHETR

Loss for the year after tay (V= ¥-VT) 18349) [262.53)

Milser comprebensive income:

() Ttema it will not be reclassified to profit ar s in sibscquent porinids:

{i} Re-easarement gaims on defined benafit plans iz .14 1003

(i} Income tax relating to ioemns that will it be re-classified to profit o low L] {155 {(3.50)

Oher comprebensive income for the year (VIIT) 459 .53

Total comprehensive loss far the year (1= VIIVII [147.90) (256.00)

Laws per equity share

- Biasic enrnings per share (INR) ) .51 (14,00}

- DHiluied earnings per share (INR) » (r.51) (3,40

(e

Sumenary of Significam pecounting policies
Thst sccomparyings notes are &n integml part of the Financinl Siements
As per our repot of oven dile attached:

For 5L Batlibel & Assoclates LLP Far and on behalf of e Board of Direcion of

Chartered Accounlass Spoton Logistics Privase Limited

ICAI Firm reghstration member; 10/ C40W/ES00004 \}/ TN ; USIRGII0 1 PTC 104834
.‘ T : y iF / ) l

per Yogesh Midha gie ] = Ajith Pal Msngalore  Abhik ¥
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Mombership o O34ne) BT DA DiN: 07168138
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Spiter Logisties Frivate Limited
ﬂmuﬂwhmmmmrummsl,m
AT amiptant dn INR M lices wnlers peheraiae afmied)

n. Exqulty share capltul
Far the year ended March 31, 2022
mqmmﬂmnmmm.mmwpﬂ Number ___(INR Millions)
At April 1, 2021 1.98.25.35 19836
Adi: Basued during the year %,15,538 EAL
Dutstanding ot the end of e Yesr 306 ALIA 206,42
For the year maded March 31, 2021
Equity shares of INR 18 ench lesued, subseribed and fulty paid Mumber (INR Milsnms}
At April 1, 2020 176,51 645 176,52
Adid: lssued during the yeat 21,73913 21,74
Outstanding at the end of the Year 1.98,25.558 198.26
T, Other equity
Deemed equity
Retalned Emplayee stack aption
Particulurs costribution from Securities Presbum ik i i Totnl
As at April 1, 2021 - 132060 (OIR.15) N 47551
Loas for the year - - {152.45) - (1524%)
Im'dﬂmddnﬂhﬁdhﬂﬂmtﬂlnlm - . 459 - 4.5
Tzl oiher comprebensive mcome - - (147.90) - {147.90)
Adid: Employee stock oplion expensca . - . 6.4 Rh.2d
Add: Premium received durinp the ear on issmanee of equity shares
(refier i note 18] e TR0 . - |70
Add: ESOP settlemen adjustmes = - - (160,217 H.ﬁl.ll]r
Add: Deemed equity contribution 7523 - - - 1523
As ot March 31, 2022 5] 108,39 [1,876.05) = w0757
Anat April 1, 2020 - 95143 (6TL15) At 531
Loss for the year - - (262.57) - (262.53)
uwmmummwmu{m} - - 633 - 653
Tutul nilver caimprelensive income - . (256,00 - (25600
Add: Premivm received during the year on {ssuance af equity shares
(refer to note 16) - ITR2E B - ATH.26
Addl: Employee stock option expenies - - - 2783 1793 |
As at Mareh 31,2021 - 132969 728.15) FEX ] 47551
Mﬂwnmmuw&umm e | |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Firamcial Stsements
A per our report of even. date attached:
Far 5.1 Batllboi & Amociates LLFP ar and an behall of the Roard af Directors of
Chartered Accourdants Sputin Logintics Private Limited
JCAL Firm registration ramber; 101049W/EIN0004 }
Yagesh Midln i q:" DA Ajith Pai Mangalore  Abhik
Parmet § oo M Director
Memberaliip No.: 094941 Ly f ol DIN: 07168138 337465
Date: May 28, 2022 Lot Dl May 18,2022 Date: May 28, 2022




Spoton Logistles Private Limited
Statement of Cush Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
rﬂﬂmrhmm”mdm;w

Particulars Far ihe year ended For ihe year ended
1

Cash flaves [rem operating sctiyitbes
Lass before trx (74,08 (31365
Adjustments to reconelle boss befare tas tw net cash fows:
Deeprecistion of property, plant and equipme 107.04 10740
mnrwm{m;mﬂn 287.31 26648
Depreciation of right-of-use aasets 40141 32791
Tpuirment of goodwill 1798 .
Allowanee for ad and devbtfis] debts (et} (1223} 6238
Bad debts written off 037 oo
Share- hmsed paymnent experne 16148 ki
Prowision for doubiful advances 12584 -
ftent concexsion oa lease Eabilities (refer noe 23) . 116.93)
Gain on terménation of leass comtracts (34.00) (.47}
Profit on ssle of property, plant and equigtmes (net) {0.,0%) .
Inserest ineome on unwinding of discoont on security deposi paid [38.64) [ Rk
Irnerest enpense 37245 30175
Imierest an lesse likilities Ti4 RLET
Interest Inconme {28
Operating profit 1,174.26 [T NE]
Net change in working capltal @
(Increase) in trade receivables (raz.m™ 221.52)
{Incresse) in atker financial assets (H00.84) (35789
Diecrensed Increase) in other nssrts B24 (58901
Incrensed{ Decrense) i other lisbilities B7.33 (5.49)
Increase in financial leabilities 4 113
Incrense in proviskons 1528 1151
(Decregse)Increase in trade payables {115.38) 193.04
Cnsh gewersted from operations 97055 EITET]
Income taxes paid (6631) (7741
Nt ensh generated from operating setivith (A) [LEE] 67293
Tnvesting activities
wﬂmphmtqumauumHmﬂmMuﬁwm} {105.63) (118,05)
Sale of property, plant & equipment 0.3 .
Interest reorived 050 4.7
Purchase of investments [208.54) -
Net cash Nows used In Investlmg activities () (71010 (112.53)
Financing activiies
Proceeds from issue of equity share eapital s 2174
Secuity premiem fieen issse of equity share capital 7870 20
Pepaysment from long term bormowings (3.31) {1216.25)
Froceeds from long term horrowings - 138,56
Repaynent of short term barowings {462 .66) (134.26)
Loan taken from related party 1,626,7L 3
ProceedsiRepayment) of Non convertibie Debentures {1,036.20) 750,00
Payment of principal panion of lease fiabikities (141,57 291,13
Paymeot of inberest portion of lexse lisbilities (72.74) (63.67)
Emgloyee stock option setflement {160.21) -
Iriterest paid (300,53} {21067}
et eash fow used In Anancing activites ( C) (54395 {437.21)
Particulan For ihe yrar emded For the yeor enibed

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net hnerensefidecreaie) In cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 7.0 1278
Cashs ami cash equivalents at the beginning of the year pe 106 48
Cash and exsh equivalents ot end of the year {refer note ) 151.26 12836

Mon-gash fisanclng and investing fmagsction
Acguisition af right-pl-use assets 16531 43279




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Statervent of Cash Flows far the vear ended March 11, 2022
(AW crmotmr fn INR Afilliows waless otherwine stried)

mhmmmmmmm

Partlealars Opening halance ol Mivws Interest pecretion ihers Closing balance
April 1, 2021 March 31, 2022
Lowmg-term bosrowings (refer noge 17) 106281 52719 #5320 {7283 1,663.38
Shorl-term barnowings {refer pote 17) TO0U {462,661 . - 23734
Lense lighilities {refer note 34) 93338 (414.61] T3.74 (503,10} 108,31
Particulars Opuening balance Cashi flows Interest accretion Dihers Closing bakanee
April 1, 2020 March 31, 2021
Long-term barrowings (vefer mole 17 121638 {137.5% Ti%1 {RE.66) 106281
[Bhon-term homrowings (refer note 17) T45.50 {134.26)] - BE.66 T
|Lioese liabsilities frefer note 34) 11424 354,80 6367 21017 95320

Summary of Significant accounting poticies {refer note 2.3)
The accomparying notes are an inegral part of the Financial Staemenis

As per owr report of even date sttached ;

For 5.0 Batlibol & Assoclates LLP
Chanered Accountnnts
1CAl Firmn registration mamber: 101049W/EI00004

per Yogesh Midha F jith Pal Mangalore
Memberiblp No.: 054541 \ DIN: 07168138
Place: New Dulli Flace: New Defhi
Diate: May I8, 2022 Duate: May 28,2021

Far and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of

Albshik Krishnn Chandrasekar  Puvithes I'

i Chéef nancial officer Company Secretary
DIM: (337455
Plaos: Bengalury Place: Bempaluma Place: Bergaluru

Diate: May 28, 1037 Diste: May I8, 2022 Dase; May 28, 2072




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Finanecial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Company overview

Spoton Logistics Private Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on November 17, 2011 as Private Limited
Company under Companies Act, 1956,

The Company is engaged in the domestic road business i.e., transportation freight through surface transport within
the territory of India. The Company has recently entered Air business i.e., transportation of goods/consignments
through Air. On June 29, 2019 the Company has changed its registered office from Bengaluru, Karnataka to
Ahmedabad, Gujarat,

During the year, a Share Purchase Agreement dated July 29, 2021, as amended by Amendment Agreement
executed on August 19, 2021, was executed amongst the Company, Delhivery Limited ("Acquirer” or “Issuer
Company™) and M/s Samara Alternate Investment Fund, M/s Samara Capital Partners Fund I Limited, M/s
Virginia Tech Foundation Inc., M/s Xponentia Opportunities Fund-1 and Xponentia Fund Partners LLP
(collectively referred as "the Sellers™). The Board of Directors of the Company approved on August 24, 2021 and
took on record the transfer of 19,825,558 fully paid-up equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each of the Company,
collectively held by the Sellers, free and clear of all encumbrances of any nature. The effective date of acquisition
is Aupust 24, 2021,

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 28, 2022,

2.  Basis of preparation and principles of consolidation
2.1  Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Stalements have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
requirements of Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

i. Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. Standalone The Financial Statements are presented
in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements and notes have been rounded
off to the nearest million (as per the requirement of Schedule IIT), unless otherwise stated.

ii. Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefit obligations

iii. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financinl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

c. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a, [Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading:

¢. Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilitics as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Refer Note 31 for Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.
2.2  Basis of transition to Ind AS

The adoption of Ind AS is carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 on | April 2020 being the transition date, In
preparing these Financial Statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance
with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and
ligbilities in the Financial Statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and previous GAAP have been
recognised directly in equity at the transition date. The Company's financial statements up to and for the year
ended 31 March 2021 were prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006,
notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act ('Previous GAAP').

As these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of
how the trensition 1o Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 46,

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters, certain optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions from the
retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. Refer note 46 for exemptions taken by the
Company for first time adoption by the Company,

23 Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if
the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

ii. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a, Transition to Ind AS

Ind AS 101 permits an entity to elect to measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of
transition to Ind AS at its carrying value and use that carrying value as its deemed cost at that date. Accordingly,
the Company has elected to use the carrying value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the date
of transition and designate the same as deemed cost on the date of transition.

b. Recognition and Measurement

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item-of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in statement profit or loss.

¢. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it's probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company,

Depreciation

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on the
estimated useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives estimated by | Useful lives as per Schedule I1
the management

Buildings 30 years 30 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years 10 years

Office Equipments 5 years 5 vears

Electrical Installations and Equipments 10 years 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 years |

Plant and Machinerv 5 years 10 years ;

Vehicles 4 years 8 to 10 years :

Leaschold improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful lives of assets, whichever is less,

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s technical assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The
residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The depreciation method applied to an asset shall be reviewed at least at each financial vear-end and, if there has
been a significant change in the expected pattem of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset, the method shall be changed to reflect the chanped pattern. Such a change shall be accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase
of the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

iii. Intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits an entity to elect to measure an item of intangible assets at the date of transition to Ind AS
at its carrying value and use that carrying value as its deemed cost at that date. Accordingly, the Company has
elected to use the carrying value of all the items of intangible assets on the date of transition and designate the
same as deemed cost on the date of transition.

Intangible assets (mainly includes softwares) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of futere economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless such expenditure forms
part of carrying value of another asset.

IT Software’s are to be depreciated 5 years as its useful life.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

iv. Business Combinations and Goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind
AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1 April 2020, As such, Indian GAAP balances
relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including Goodwill, have been carried forward,

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a Subsidiary comprises the

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Company; and

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,

" 8 8§ &

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:
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¢ Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employce
Benefits respectively.

The excess of the
= consideration transferred;
* amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
* acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill, If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases,
the bargain purchase gain is recognized directly in equity as capital reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 1o
each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. A cash generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date,
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subseguently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss,
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent balance sheet dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate,

v, Lease
Company as a lessee

The Company accounted for Ind AS 116 as per the exemption available in Ind AS 101 i.e. lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments and right-of-use assel at its carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application i.e., 1 April 2020 on retained earnings.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

b} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

¢) Short term leases and lease of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

vii. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. A 5-
step approach is used to recognize revenue as below:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Performance obligation

At contract inception, the Company assess the goods and services promised in contracts with customers and
identifies various performance obligations to provide distinct goods and services to the customers. The Company
has determined following distinet goods and services that represent its primary performance obligation.

The transaction price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various
elements like discounts ete. offered by the Company as part of the contract.

Transportation services

Revenue is recognized for these performance obligations as they are satisfied over the contract term, which
generally represents the transit period including the incomplete trips at the balance sheet date. The transit period
can vary based upon the method of transpont, generally a couple days for over the road, rail, and air transportation.
The revenue is recognized net of discounts, credit notes efc. established at the time of sale.

Other allied services
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Revenue from renting of warchouse and end to end services are recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously avails the benefits of these services. Hence, the revenue from such services is recognised monthly,
in accordance with the amount fixed as per the agreements.

The Company collects Goods & Service Tax (GST) GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from sale of unclaimed goods are recognised as and when the unclaimed goods are sold as per the
Company’s policy.

Contract balances

The policy for Contract balances i.e., contract assets, trade receivables and contract liabilities is as follows:

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to receive consideration in exchange for services already transferred to the customer
(which consist of unbilled receivable). By transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is unconditional,

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to deliver services to a customer for which the company has received
consideration or part thereof (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays
consideration before the Company deliver services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made, or the payment is due {(whichever is carlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Company performs under the contract.

viii. Other income

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting
date.

Interest
Interest income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and amount
of income can be measured reliably.

ix. Employee benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably,

ii. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes

specified monthly contributions towards employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance to
Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan, The Company's
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iv.

Y.

contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit or loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

iii. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme are defined benefit plans. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future-benefit that employees have carmned
in retum for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). To
caleulate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Femeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized
in OCI, The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit linbility (asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), considering any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (“past service cost’ or *past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

Other employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absence and utilize it
in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or termination of employment. The Company
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the emplovee renders the services that
increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absence as the additional
amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
balance sheet date. The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date, The Company recognizes actuarial
gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The Company, in case of non-accumulating
compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-Settled transactions
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In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind
AS accounting for vested equity settled options that have already vested on or before 1 April 2020. As such,
Indian GAAP balances relating to such vested options have been carried forward.

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting peried has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit or loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and ¢nd of that period and is
recognized in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not considered when determining the grant date fair value
of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions arc treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense had
the terms had not been modified if the original terms of the award are met, An additional expense is recognized
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of medification. Where an award is cancelled by the
Company or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately
through profit or loss.

x. Taxes
Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts, and its intended to realize the assets and settle the liabilities on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or ‘an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
assct is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (¢ither in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which MAT
eredit becomes eligible to be recognized, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement as part of Deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the same at each
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of the MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convineing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income-tax during the specified
period.
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xi, Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xil. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

ii) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncenain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognized because
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed and not recognized.

xiii. Measurement of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a, In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
b. Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢. Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, Involvement of external valuers
is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained,

At each balance sheet date, the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies are analyzed. For this analysis, the team
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and labilities is also compared with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

xiif. Financial instruments

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and linbilities on the

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as
explained above.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets

(i} Initial recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial assets which are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(ii) Subsequent classification and measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost; or
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
3. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
1. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
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a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss, Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their initial

recognition, except if and if in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets

2. Financial assets at FVTPL (debt instruments)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

3. Financial assets at FVOCI (debt instruments)

A debt instrument” is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL: ' :

a) The assét is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual eash
flows and selling financial assets, and

b) Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

(iif) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to repay.
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(iv) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance.

ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it

recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each balance sheet date; right from its initial
recognition.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, eall, and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial

instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term
of the financial instrument.

ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine ﬁnpﬂinm:m loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every balance sheet
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

In case any balance is disputed by the eustomer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the provision
and amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed balance
which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing bucket for making the provision.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit or loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of
profit or loss, The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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B. Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include debenture, trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts,

{ii) Subsequent measurement

(i)

xv.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered by
the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

(Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

ii. Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings) - After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the ETR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount er premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognitinn

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis, to realise the asseis and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
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asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caloulations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

xv. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the cost of asset.

xvi. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

To the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

xvii. Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for issue,

Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period.
Non-adjusting events after the balance sheet date are not accounted but disclosed.
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3. Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's
financial statements

4.  New and amended standards

i

i,

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. The company has not early adopted any other standard or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS
116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest

- Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued

- Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company intends to use
the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable,

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAL

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form
part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While the Framework is primarily meant for the
standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to
develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of
accounting policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind
AS includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based
Payments, footnote to be added for definition of lability i.e., definition of liability is not revised on account of
revision of definition in eonceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual perods beginning on or after April 1, 2021, Accordingly,
the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after April 01,
2021,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company,
Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions
MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 to update

the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June
30, 2022 from June 30, 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or afier April




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1, 2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this
amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2020,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable
assets acquired, and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Therefore, the acquirer does
not recognize those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognizes those costs
in its post-combination financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount™ is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use™ are replaced with “higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use™. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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Nates to the Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2023
(AR aanownt in INR Millions rnless othernine staied)

5. L i i
Particular Leasehold Furnitwre & fitings e Coatipaters Flant & Muator Tuotal
Improvements Equipments muchinery vehicles
At deemed cost
Grosa block
At Aprdl 1, 2020 17.80 1 M 5554 4151 49 18040
Mdditiona 2694 009 1.5 M08 27461 - 109.20
Dispossh = - . ) = . L]
At Mareh 31, 2021 54,74 FrEE] 51,15 95 T1.12 49 189,56
Additiona an 4.13 2043 [Tk 678 . 11167
Dispousty : - it ch i {030 (049
At March 31, 2022 TER 26,24 71.58 150,17 .M - L7
Accumuisted depreciation
AL Aprid 1, 2020% - - - - - - -
Charge for the year {refer note 27) (18 T8 187 4134 a7 0 10740
DHaposals - - = (0.04) =2 - (004}
At March 31, 2021 1187 T.19 18.70 41.31 28,07 021 167.38
Charge for the year {refer nose 27) =T 1] .14 1881 I 19,68 - 107,04
Drapensaln . - - - - {0.20 (0.1
At March 31, 3021 3538 1433 3131 [TW5] 4773 e 114._31
Net block
At April 1, 2020 750 (EHod Jed 5554 4351 049 180,40
At March 31, 2021 4187 1452 jr43 a5.64 43.08 .18 18221
At March 31, 2022 47148 1.9 am 6894 30,07 - 187,57

The title deed of immovable propenties included in property, plant and equipment are held in ibe nama of the Conspany and sne pledged os security agains ihe borrowings taken by the Company.

*On tnsition io Ind AS (e, Apel 1, XE0), the Company has elecied to continue with the carmying value of oll property, plan and equipment mensured a8 per the previous GAAF and wse tha
carrying valee 51 the deemed ¢ost of propenty, plant and equipment.

There han been no revaluation performed during the year,
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(Al mmownt in [NR Millions uniers aderiie sibed)

6. Intamgible aseels

Particnlars Camputer Softwnre Ginahwill Total
At deemed eost

Gross hiack

At April L, 2020+ 5156 88101 9057
Additions 357 - s
Tramsferred from Intangible ssaets undder development 1050 - 1056
At Mareh 31, 2021 TLAY LI 95150
Aditions 258 ke 3542
At March 31, 2022 9731 AL STRAY
Accumualated anwritsafion

At April 1, 2020%* - - -
Cluargs for the year {refer ote 27) 13,67 2518] L]
At Mareh 31, 2021 13,67 15181 26b.A%
Charye for the year (refer pote 1730 A9 L8 e Ly
litpairment for the yeard 2 17,08 17.98
At March 3], 2021 ﬂ._Ii 31361 27077
Met block

At April 1, 2020 5756 BB1.01 a5y
Al March 31, 2021 i = 62820 GHEOT
A Mareh 31, 2021 40,15 5740 D658

** O transition 1o lnd AS (Le. Apsil 1, 20200, the Comparry has elected 1o contines with the carmying value of ol intangibles assets measred ns per the previous GAAP and wse that carying
valug s the dosmied cost af imtangibles msets.

There has been no revalustion performed disring the year,

Cawill
The ampusi of has a a8 follown:-
Asal Asat Ax st
March 31, 2021 March 31, 1021 April 1, 2020
Goodwill on basiness combination 35740 678,20 BELDI
387,40 618 10 HALDI

# The Compary has goodwill srising on aceoust of certain husiness combinations sgprepating 1o carrying vaboe of INR 881,01 millicn as on April [, 2020, In line with Appendix C 1o Ind AS
101, the Compay has chosen not 10 apply Ind AS 103 retrospectively to past husiness combinations Le | business combination that occumed before the date of rassition to knd AS) and camy the
Cioodwill in the opening Ind AS Balance Shoet in socordnnce with fhe transition date halance as per provious GAAP. Accordingly, the comyinig value of Rs 88101 million s based an the
carrying value s on April 1, 2020 an per Indion GAAP,

O the abave [IVE 831.01 millica, goodwill with carrying vaue of IMR 863 million as an Apeil [, 2020 s related 1o Scheme of Amingement between Vankatesh Pharmn Private Limited and the
Hedding Company. Mmﬂ-lﬁnnﬁnlmwﬂdhhMﬂmﬂﬂnwLl.wTwm.mumrmmhmlmmmmumap-bdnﬂmm
sceordingly, the amertization charge for the year ended March 31, 10210 is TNE 252,81 milion,

Even though, as per [nd AS Ii}'}.npod-:’l'luhlumbudnlunmbiwin-mdwhnﬂﬁ-mkuhmirmy.thnmmﬂmﬁnﬁmmmhmrmw
the Coenpary 2 mandated by the concerned Scheme approved by the relevant authorities,

The Company performs fest for geodwill impalrment af least asmaslly os 31 March, or {f indicators of Empairinent nrise, such a3 the effiects of obsolescence, demand, competition and olfer
econamic factors or on occurrence of an event or change in circumstances that would more likely than mol reduee the fair valise below its carrying amount, When determining the fuir value, we
utitize various sssumptions, including eperating results, business plans and projections of fiture cash Bows, Any adverse changes in key assumptions sbout our businesses and their prospects or
n-ﬁnmhmmﬂwuuadmphhmnfﬁkmmdmddmrh-imﬁmww

Th:mwﬂmﬂ:nﬂ‘.‘ﬂU::r:mwwmm&mmﬁmmm‘whﬁmﬂmﬂmmmgwwmEwlmrulpurpuu.mnﬂ
mmmumn:rmmmmdmmmmummmurmmnmmhﬁmwm
mmmmm-y-ph-;unh,-Wﬂwmmmmmpmmmmmmmmwmum
markets in which the Compary operates.

Mansgemnent has done impairment snalysisas oo March 31, 2022 snd aceordingly recognised am impairmient loss amoustiag to INR 1758 millics,

tlens comsidered while i i testing nre pa foliows:
EBITDA The EBITDA margins kave been estitnated based on past expeTienct e considerng the impact of incremental tevenue and symergi
beniefits that the company will et in flsture due to increass | process efficiencies, Margine will bo positively impacted from

efficiencies, growth in top line and oot rationalisation | athers inftiatives driven by the company;

DHiscount rate Discousil rste reflects the current market asessment of the risks specific o a CGU hased on the weighted average cont of capial for
respoctive COLL

Cirvrarih rates The grewih rses wsed are-in line with the lorg-term average growth mies of the respective industty and counsry in which the entity
apernigs and ane consistent with the intemal/ exiernal sources of inf: ion, The aversge ferminal growth mte wsed = extrapolsting
cash flows beyond the planning yesr is 5%,

Cagital expenditures Tbvni:lwﬁlmat‘ﬂpulupe-ﬂmnrhﬂdmnﬂﬂimumhmhlm1:lp{ulupuﬁmr:mw'ndm
|mmwmm.
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Tiak Intangihle Asset under Development (IAUD)

Furtienlars Intangiltle asscts under
development
At April 1, 2020 791
Additiony 12
Trarsferred to intangible assets 1036
At Mareh 31, 2021 5.67
Additions nn
Witten off during the year {38.38)

At March 31, 2002
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(AN empnent jn INR Millices wnless athernine stated)

Tih). Intangilile Asset nnder Develepment (IAUD) Ageing Sehedule

As ot March 31,2022

Crutstanding for fallewing periods fram due date of payment

Particulars Total
Leess than | year | 1-1 vear | 2-3 yein Maore than 3 years

Frojects in progress - - - E H
Total - - = - =
As nt Muarch 31, 2021

Datstnnding for fillowing periods from due date of payment | 1
e Less than | year | 12 years [ 13 yeans [ Morethaniyenn | bekive
Projects in progress .67 - . - (Y1
Total 647 = - - 667
As st April 1, 2020

Dutatnnding for foBowing perbods from dee date of payment
| Tatal

R Les than | year | 1-2 yenrs | 23 yeary | More than 3 years b

Projects in progresa pEdl - - . 781
Tatal .91 - - - 7.91
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{All ameunt in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

8. Deferred tax
Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss (A):

Particnlars Fuor the y!it_:qdld For t._l_i: year ended
! March 31, 2li2z March 31, 2021
Current income tax:

Current tax 145.0% 11192
Deferred tax: :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (66,68) {173.04)
Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit and Loss T8.41 (61.12)

Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (B ) 1
Deferred tax relating to ftems in OC] in the vear:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax income on defined benefit plans (1.35} 3.50)
Income tax credit to OCT (1.55) {3.50)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate { C) :
For the year cnded  For the year ended
EWrei el March 31,2022  March 31,2021
Accounting loss hefore income tax (74.08) (323.65)
At India's statutory income tax mie of 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 34.944%) (18.64) (113,109
Mon-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Effisct of change in tax rate 1051 -
Effect of permanent differences 94,93 42,19
Other (B.39) 9.82
Total 7841 {61.08)
Income tax expense as per stntement of profit and loss TaA4l

(61.12)




Speien Leghiiny Frivate Limived

Moaen 1o the Finuneis] Sestemons for the year ndest Mareh 31, 19522
Al s i N AT ey auberise stuid)

M. Deferred tnx toeadimed)

Teecrgmiard delerred tvn avivts and labiligies | O i

Dt tay okt e g fallwing o =
Datunte sheet 1 i in ERC1 H: il In & af Praflt nmil Lass
r Ax Ay at Anat Fur thr yesr endnd Fuor the yrar ended ot the year caded Far ke yoar endad
01 Anreh 31, bk pir ] Fdarch 3, 31032 March 31, 203} March 31, 2022 March JI, 3921

Deeferred dun maet srhiag on seoannt of |

Effect of gramaity, eospesssisd stamon and bomn I nmn % (K13 3.0 AET) 5
et af previian for doutefed detm LAY 148 T8 1618 g
Effizt of deprocastion un propety, plest snd oyspee. nm 1nie : LLE R LeIRLY
et of intwwes on bormwings - pal - - 4 pLF ] Lra®il)
Efffen of inveem on e amd bt of me mam 1547 nu 19 = . R ] (L
Effieny of Provisios for deubifil sdvanees 13k . . . . 110 -
Effiect of employee stock opticn plan ol 1 i . 1 Bnn oI
Effent of disemssing of sexunty depesi - in (5] in (LATH
Dhferrad rn Sabilivices ariniog s sccomm of 1

Effer] of gorbwll 1RR.94) 20030 iﬂl_ﬂﬂ C = 1139.56) Eﬁa

151 JERNTT] {28734 188 pEL] {6 EK) {17
Beficeiod bn the Balance Shest 33 Pollows:
Ayl Avat Aned

e Murgh 31,2001 Mareh 31, 3631 April 1, 2028

Drefierret tan mesety 1748 18150 ([T

Do farn [imbvilitien {954} (2H9.50 OLEY

Defirrend ty pncts (Babitivies) (net) FirT] 2180 [FIAET
Bereaeiharen of delrongd sy singe (lishdries) [

Awal Aswi

. Wfarch 31, 2022 Mlaieh J1, 1021

Cipening babanee ol ] 071}

Tax incrma during the yomt rerognived s profi o lnes W 1710

Tun expsmae during fhe your rocogrinnd in 001 [L50 {330

Clsing balance of defrrred tin prets! {lintalities) feci) 15 ATED

Amendment refased {0 gosdwill under lmesme fan it

The Fissnee Act, 2021 ke introdaced an amendverest i Section 17 of Incorms e A 1901, wherey goodwill of o beinems will sor be idered 51w depr Ly wrvey woed degerern n guodwill will act ke allewed 12 dedntible avperdtare
effertive Apri |, 2038

I pecordancn with e puiremests of lacome o, the Company has reoogninsd ore mne @ pemss smousing o IR 10786 million in msinel sersg on Ageil | 5521 m the oainoee on the differmos e Goodwill mger booka of
roounty and ity epraind tan bag of MEL which eslis] from e afsrmneionsd snesdmern. Tie defered ean Havity in oot enpecind io be o cash iraflow i the fieure sad s revernl s deemed anbilety s the v of i amocisind gooceill
npeied by vales in uee.

Thie Company checind i cuprcie the option persine] andes ssctlon 15044 of e Income Tan ez 1981 m memducnd by the Taxation Las (4 Ol 2019, Arvowimgly, the Company b srognised Frovision for Incove Tas fr
the year wel 1o-menseen] ity Daferrod tan anset josfamnd defeed o lishiling) bas the roe presevibed in the szl sention. Accostingly, defreod b mant have sducal by INR 10050 million . The asx charge for the yoar have incressad by BR 11510
irllon

The Connparmy offiets tas axsces ard lsbilitics |f el only o # b  lopally endororable right tn s off come (e sxsets sl currens e lishilities sl the Sefened tax axsets nul defored tax Tbdita relme-t incosne tanm fovied by the e sy
mrihoriny,
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(Al rovscrenr dn IR Lfiliows walert otheraine ehmbed)

8. Trude recelvaliles
Particulars Asat Asai st
March 31, 2022 Mourch M1, 2021 Apell 1, 2020
Trade receivables 1,755.79 1611.15 1ASZ 04
Totnl trade recelvabies l.hm'ﬂ LE11.15 145204
Bresk-mp for aheve:
Asat Asat At
Mlarch 31, 1022 Mlarch 31, 2021 Aprdl 1, 3020
Trade recelvables
Usizeured - considened good LTI 161105 | 45204
Trade receivables - credit impained 133,66 13558 T340
1LAT9.45 L4r.0a 152553
Impairment ABowanece (allowanee for baid and donbifol debis)
Trade receivables- credit impaired (12366 (135.58) (T34
(128.66) [{ELE. ] 1349
Tatal Trade recelvables (ner) 175579 161115 145204

The allowsnce for doubtfial scecunts as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 and changes in the allowsnce for deubtful secounts durimg the year ended = of that, date
were as followa:

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31,3020 March 31,201
Opening balanee [ELE Tidn
Adid: Provivion of irade reccivables-credit impaired - 6239
Less: Write oifs, net of recovenies 2.2 =
Chrsing lmalince 133,66 L3588

Mo trwde: or ciher recelvable are due from divectors or other officers of the Company either severally or Joinily with sty tther person, Nor any trade or cther recelvsble
e due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, n drectar or o member,

Trade roceivables are non-inlerest bearing and are genenally on terms of 30 s S0 day

{Thix space bay heen mwﬂ}HHMﬂ_
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(A camicnnt e INR AT el atberise siated)

9,{n) Trade receivables ageing schednle
As at March 31, 2022

it et it 0 fimg for Following perieds from dus date of payment
Partieulars due Lass than & 6 months - | t— P Maore iban 3 Total
Alomibs yEar L ¥ yearsy
Undispaned Trade Recsvabilen — conmdened good S 30 Tl 58 092 - - - 178580
Unafisprited Tracde Meceveablen — which have signifizant inerease in credit risk = - - - -
Undispued Trade receivable — credst impasred 1552 . - - - 15582
Disputed Trade it o = - = = 5
Driaputed Trade recevvables — which have signilicant momnse in oredit risk. - . - - - -
Dispubed Trade recervibles = coedit impaired 7468 13.75 4534 26 80 14.55 108,14
Toial 6534 TRALTE 42.67 45,34 2680 14.56 1,879.45
As al March 31, 2031
Ouistnnding for following periods from due date of payment
Partsrulars c"""‘::' o Lewthan 6 6montha-1 23 More than 3 Total
Mumihs yewr it YOAri
Undisputed Trade Rmeivibles - conaidered good 1,057.7R S0 4347 - - - 160165
Undisputed Trade Receivabies — which hava sgnificant ieceense in credia risk o - . -
Unadisputed Trade receivable — credil impaired a5 1753 - - - 5703
Dispeed Trado receivables - comsidersd good - . - - - - =
Deaputed Trade receivables — which have significant inereass i eredit nsk. = - * - -
Diapaned Trude receivables ~ credil unpaired . 141 2.3 4| &7 201 oxn ]
Total 1,087 78 25681 T3 4167 8.1 .12 1,747.03
Asat Apeil 1, 2020
i et i Outstanding for follawing perisds fram due date of payment
Pasrticolars i, Lessthan & 6 sonths = | 0 i 23 Mare fhan 3 Touwl
Muonths year ¥ i yoary
Lindusputed Trade Re blm - dered gocsd oaz1T 75311 (8] - = 145204
Undespised Trade Recevvabies — which bave sigruficant increase i credit rsk - - - - - - »
Unibprted Trade reoavable — eredit impaired - 1485 - 2485
Driggruted Trade receivables - congidered good - E - - -
Dhsputed Trade recaivabies — which have uigniflcas incresse in oredit nsi - - - . - -
Dhspruted Trade recervables — credit impaired - B2 1014 2943 024 - Afe4
Tatal 682,17 THE. 28 2540 29.43 a4 = 152557




Spetem Loghtics Private Lisnited
Mty bo (b Financial S2atements for the year essded March 31, 2022
£AN moront dn (VR AEony nedery othorwine simsed)

10, Cash wad ensh enpuivalents
Partieulars Anat Asal Anwt
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2400
Holawcer wilh danks:
= In current meocents 15047 brel ] 1045.30
Cash on hand Ty 07 118
(HE 11519 1
11, Tovestmenis
Partientuers An it Anal A pt
Mareh 31, 2022 Adarch 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Tnvestment in sabsidiary st conte o T
5,000 (Muarch 31, 2021; 3,250, Apell 01, 3030 3,250) equiry shares of Spoton Sepply Chain Solutiom Private Limited (Remerly A25M 11456 11596
knmuen s Basg Technologies and Services Privase Limited) of INR 100 each, fally pald-up®
42530 ETr 21558
* Represents 100% (March 31, Jlm 65%, April (1, 2000 5%) invesiment in equity share capital of Spoton Supply Chain Scluticns Private w:mm-mrmuuam
Private Limiied), the Subsidi quired by the Company on Novesiber 29, 2019 from Se extning sharsholders (“the existing shareholden™). The imeanment was made in 3,250 egeity shares of

leﬁilmdﬂﬂm#w WHMMMI ihe Opaion Deed Agreemen dated Pecember 04, 2018 wan terminated and the Cosmpany’ sequined balanos 35% of
equity shares dinectly fiom the noo-controllieg skarcholders.

J3; iy it sty

Particnlars Aa ot At Asat
Mareh 31, 1022 Mareh 31, 2021 Ageril 1, 2020

Uinsecwred, comisdered good

Coniract sssety AT L B okl

Security deposs 47,58 0,90 15017

[mterent aceroad on fved deposin wig 04N 143

il b s I =

9135 [k AHLAT

Nan-gurrenn

Unsecnired, ennsbierod goad

Security depiin 1191 tsa.m 11989

Margin movery deposite® 1% 0.3y 0.94

Tatal non-twrrest financiad swen FLE] [EFE]] 120,83

Cwrrent

Unsecured, eomsldered goad

Contruct ety a7l ATARE 20008

Imevest acorued on fived deposits LR ] 040 1.43

Security deposits pat L O 3038

LLesy: Provision fior doubifalf security depositn (392 - .

Security deposits {nei) IMUGR t: ﬂg

Bargin money depesin® . .

Oher receivabies &0.94 4% -

‘Total rurrest Nimancisl enets B3 S56AT JTe

*Fefeey o margin momey depoits agalnst bank guaramee Esucd by banka, which are fien imarked with vnricas govemment auiliorites. These deposita caanat be wilhdrawn by the Comany within 12
it from the halaece sheet date.

13, Ailvamee income tan {net)
Particulars Aot As As ol
1, 2022 March 31, X021 April 1, 2020
Advvance incoms e (net of provision) 154,18 mn HEDY
Minimum ahenate tax, cedit eotislemen . 4108
118 HI._TF m£
J4, Qther pusets
Particniar Av ot Aswl As s
Msrch 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2021 Al 1, e
Unseenred, eonsidernd good, nnless stated otherwise
Capital advame=s 013 a9 158
Prepaid expenses [[SR 18662 13199
Advances o employees 164 183 x
Balsroe with govenmen authorities* 5 s 1430
Advances b supntiers Gt 2530 14.14
FrxT] 12615 16431
Breskap of sbove:
Moa-Current
Capital mbvance Lig 348 L55
Lesa: Provision for doabifil capeeal sdvances (L8 . .
Capital mbvances (oet) [-Fic] 549 .53
Prepaid expemes e (L] 1.
Malamcn wigh gererninem mthoritien™ J0M 1430 1431
Totsl non-currrsi 3136 TR 1737
Curres
Advamces ha supplien 13ss 1m0 14,14
Lagsn: Prowiskon for doubifl advesces 1w supplies (721} - i
Advunces 40 supplies (net) .64 FLE ] 14,14
Mepald expenes 168D 15881 13054
Adwmnces 10 emgriovess. M 103 (]
Balance with govermesent suihorithes™ - peL]] -
Totsl rarreni 174,08 W57 14644

* Ieprevenis amount degoaied urder proiest with service tox depariment. For more details refier note 190
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(AR ansemng in INR MilTiany unless atherwive shated)

15, Share Caglia]

Authurized Share Capital

Particulars

An ol

18,000,000 | March 31, 202 1= 185,000,000, Apel 01 2020: 188,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each

Lastied, subseribed and Tully
parlel-up equity shares

20,541,094 {March 31, 2021: 19,825,558, April 01, 2020: 17,651,645 ) equity shares of NI 10 each, filly paid-up

Terms and rights attached to the equbty shares

Asat

b 1 March 31 1

Agai

1.5BO.00 180,00 | A80.00

13000 LA 148000
0641 19826 176,42

iidl DL JT63L,

The Company has endy one class of shares refirred bo ns equity shares having par value of INR 10 All equity shares cury similar voting rights of 111 and sémilar dividend righta. In the event of lquidation
of the Company, ihe helders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive amy of the ramaining assets of the Company after distribation of all preferential amousts. The istribution will be i propartion Lo the

punsber of equity shares beld by ihe sharcholders.

Reconcllintion of shures outstanding at the beglnning and end of the reparting year

Number Asal Number At
FParticulars of yhares March 31, 2021 of shares March 31, 2021
At the begisming af the year 158,25 538 19825 1.76,51 645 176.52
Mumber of shanes tsmued during the year* B.15.5%6 B.15 2173513 1.74
‘Nurmber and value of shares outstanding st the end of the yess Higdl I 198.26

* Puirsaant o the provisiona of Section 62 {1 s} of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year, the Company bas sued 8,015,536 (March 31,2021 £ 2,173,913, Apeil 01, J020 : Nil) equity shares of the face
value TSR 10 fly i, ut fhe preméum of INT. 96.40 (Match 31, 3021 174, April 01, 2020 : Nif) each in proportion of the existing sharhaldmg. The shares were issued io promaters i.e. ESOPs has
been comvened i equity which has heen subsequenly ssid by (hem to Defhivery Limited in September 2021.

Ax ot March 31, 2032 As ot March 31, 2021 As at April |, 2020
No.of shares % odding No. of shares % binkding N of share 4 holding
206410404 100% - 0% - %
- 12 #2/02,207 4137 74,606,563 42.30%
- 0% 60,64,223 30,599 51,69,432 20294,
- "4 14, 70,515 TAN 10,685,787 11.70%
- e 3485874 17.58% 347,124 13.30%

Tise Company is professionally managed snd hive no promoeters,
*Wiih effect from Aagast 24, 2021 _ the compasry has been acquired by Dethivery Limived
Thiere wis na eqeity shaves issued as banus, shares isssed for consideration ther than cash and shares bought back during the perfod of five yesms immedinely presedimg the raporiing date.

Fafer nose 33 for terms and disclosure in relation o employes stock cption plan.




Spoton Loplstles Private Limited
MNotes im the Flaancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
FAN amonns iw INR Millions umlesr ockerwize saned)

16, Oiler equity
Parficulars Anat Asat Agar

Mareh 31, 2002 Muarch 31, 2001 April 1, 2020
Srcurities Premium
Balamee st the beginning of the year 132460 85143 85143
Add; Premium recetved during the year on isseance of equity thares TR0 3182 -
Balance st the end of the year [FITED] 1 312.69 LA
Retnined earmings
Bistance ut the beginning of the yesr (928.15) {67215 {87215}
Add: Lo for the year {15245 (262.5%) .
Add: Remeasurerent gaink an defined benedit obligation 459 .51
Add: ESOP settlement adjustment - . ,
Balance ot the end of the year {1.076.05) [ENE L15
Employee stock sption sutstanding atconnt
Bialance ut the beginning of the year T A6.04 4604
A Emgloyee stock aption expenses during the year H6.24 N
Less: Emploves sock apticn sentled during the year {16021} - .
Balonce ol the end of tho year 000 73.97 4604
Dieemed equily contribution from parent entlty
Balance st the beginning of the yesr . -
Add: Decmed equity contribution 7823 -
Balance at the end of the year 7333 -
Total nther equity 407.57 47851 s
Nature and parpose of reserves

Securitics preminm

Securities previium reserve is used to record the premium on sssae of shares. The reserve can be atitised ondy for [imited purposes such as jsuance of bomms shares in sccondance with th provisions
of the Compaies Act, 2013,

Devened equity contribution from parent entity
Fost acquistion of the Comapany by Dellivery, the new options have been granted by Delkivery ("tbe scguirer®) to the employees of Spoton, Refer to Node 33 for further detalls of these plans.

Emplnyee stock aption suistanding stcount
The Campany has twa shane option schemes under which option bo subscribe for the Company's shares bave been gramted b cerfain executives amsd senlor erployess.

The share-based payment reserve (5 used o recognise the value of eguity-sctiied shave-bused pay provided to employess, including key mimagement persansel, &5 part of thelr remuneration,
Reafier 1o Note ¥ for farther detnils of these plans.

Retained earnings

Retnined carmings ane the profits{losa) thal the Company hay i J till dode, less amy transfers 1o peneral resenve, dividends or olbher disriations padd 12 shareholders. Reinined sormings

includes re-meaguremnert Loss | {gain} on dofined benefit plans, net of taves that will not be reclassifled 1o the siatement of profll mmd loss. Retstned eamings is a [bee reserve available io the Company
and eligibde fior distribution to shareholders, in case where if is having positive halance representing pet esmings till dote.




Spoton Loglstics Private Limlted
Mobes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2032
(AN sosonent én INR Miilives wnlers odernise siafed)

11, Borrowings
Particulurs As ot Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 M, 2021 April 1, 2020

Lang term borrwkngs
Mon convertthle Debentares (refer note (i) below) - 103281 -
Lann from related parties {refier note (v} below) 1,626,71
Tenn loan from:

- Financial fnatingicns {refer nofe [iif) below) - - 1,216,235

- Bk (refer note (i) below) 36,68 40,00 -
Lexx: Currenl matarities of bang-term delil {335.30) (333) (102,500
Total long term barrowings 132808 1,059,48 1,013.75
Shart term borrowings
Tarm boan from:

- Banks (rofer note (i) below) BENI ER.06
Loan repryabile on demand fiom refated parties (rofer note (v) below)

= Loan froen Diethivery Limived -
Loan repayahle on demand frem banks (refier note (iv) below)

= Csh credit 0.53 1.34 17560

« Warking capital loans 150,00 &10.00 SI0.00

23734 T 00 TAR5ED
Add: Cusrent maturities of lomg-term debt (refer above) 33530 133 10350
5TLE84 Ta3.33 BRI

MNeten:

(1) Terma of repayment of Senbor, Secured, Unmited, Unlived, Non-Convertible Debentures ("%CDa"™) abong with rate of interest on loan and nsture of security

The Company isued subscribed and afloeted Wil (March 31, 3021: TNR 950 million, April 1, 2020: Nil) 13% non-comvertibie debentures of TNR, | 000,000 each on » private plocemen basis. The
?EDIndnwhmwwfrhnfllﬂnﬂu:mlﬂ]mwn!ﬂnﬂ&mhhﬂhmmmmmm}wMMHmmw
10%, deh year; 3%, 5th year: 20% and fih year: 20%. The coupon rute is 13% p.a compounded manthly pay

The facility is secared by

) 97% share pledge of the lsuer.

) Non-Disposal Uindertsking ever 3% of fie Tanser shares lield by Virginia Teeh Foundntion along with a suitsble Drag Along Righte,

¢} Non Dispasal Undertaiing over 31% shares of the lssuer along with suitsble Dy Along Réghts to the Iivestor s Imierin Security il the creation of pledge over these shares.

) Non-Diisposal Undertaking ("NOU™) on bysee's entive shareholding st all points of time daring this tamaction Tesar (65% currenily) in Spaton Supply Chain Sclutions Private Limsdied { fonnaly
known as Rang Technologies and Services Private Limised),

) Firsé pari-passu charge on tangible fived assets {present and flature) of the lssuer.

1) Becond charge on the carment nesets (present amd future) of the [ssaer,

) Charge on the Diebt Service Reserve Account (TDSRA"

Poat noquisition of the Company by Defhivery Le. August 33, 2021, ibe Company hos ropaid the outsinmbing tmlance along wigh nlerest till origin] maturity period of Ianuary, 2023 nd make
whole amount as per below-

Particulin Amnuni

| Princepal sepayment S50, 0t
nterest till ariginal ity pesi 180,52
| Ddaee whole amoen 6,20
Total Amuount paid 121672

(M) Terms of repayment of seeured loan fram banks alang with rate of laterest on lean and nture of security

1) HOFC Bank:

‘Warking Capital serm loan amouwnts to INR 86,81 millon (March 31, 20211 INF 38,68 million, Agpril 1, 2020: Nil) wes sncticned to the Holding Company, pursasnt to the "Emergency Credit fine
Guranteed Scheme” (ECLGS) of Government of India. The loan is 1o be rapaid in 42 equsl montisly installment of INR 1.25 million each after motatorium period of 12 monshs from the: date of
disbursement. The repiyment of loan will begin from March 07, 2022, The imerest rate of 7.5% paa (| year MCLR = 0.25% subject 1o maximum of 9.25% pa) is payable oo a moothly hasis from
tha daie of disbursement. Thia facility Is covered by 100% guarnnes from NOGTC (Mational Credit Guarsnise Trustee Company Linvited, Ministry of Finanoe, Govermment of Indin) and also
pecumed by the exicsmion of second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities inclinding morgsges crested in fnour of the Bank.

The entine loan smeant has been classified under curment bormowings doe 1o non-ccenplianee of the hank covenank.

The financial covenants relating to Adjusted foml netwonh, Toinl labilaies” Tolnl nel worth and Enbereat coverage ratio have nol been complied with for year ended on March 31, 2022, However in
wiew of the empuing relationship with the lending banks, the managemend believes that this non-compliance will not resull in levy of penalty on the Company. Basis, the breach of covenani which
s novi been cured befine the Financial Stmemenis have been approvied, o working capltal term loan fram HOFC bhank his been classified as ooment barmawings,




Spoton Logisties Private Limived
Nodes to the Flnanckal Statements for the year enidod Mareh 31, 2022
(AT armours im IVR Millors imlesr ocherwise siated)

1) Axis Banks

Term loan amousting to [NK 36,72 million (March 31, 2021: INR 3667 mitlion, April 01, 2020: Nil ) dlscioned under non carmest borrowings and current maturity mmounting ta [N 9,95 million
(March 31, 20212 INR 3.33 million, Apeil 01, 2020 Nil) disclosed under current borrewings. Pursasnt o "Emergency Credit fine Guranteed Scheme™ (ECLOS) of Government of India, the benk
sanctioned working cepital term foan 1o the Company. The loat was to be repald in 4% equal mathly installment of INR (.83 million each after moratoriom period of 12 months from the dite of
disbursement and the last installment |s INR 023 million. The repavment of losn has begun from December 31, 2021, The interest rute of 7.5% pa {1 year MCLR + 0.05%) payable oo moothly
lhnsis from the date of dishueremend, Thas fecflity is covered by 100% guamsies from NOGTC (Nations] Credit G Trustee Company Limited, Ministry of Finance, Oovernmvent of India).
Also seured socond pari-passu change on entire cusvent nssets and entire movable fixed assets of the Holding Company, both present and fisture.,

17, Borrawings

(i) Terma of repayment of secured torm lonm frmm ether sloug with mie of interest rate ond aztnre of security,

Piramn! Capital & Housing Finanee Limited:

“Term loan amounting to 54l (March 31, 202 1; i, April 1, 2020: INR 1,216.25 million) discloeed unider Men cusrent borsovisgs and cuevent maturities of long-enn horreing Wil (March 31,
2020 Mil, Aprid 1, 2030 TNR 192,5 millian}, The term loan has been repaid in full before oniginal mufusity during the year 2020-21, The interent rale is Pirnmal PLR minns spread (current year
faterest rate range 13.65% - 14.65% pa). The said loan is secared by first charge on all the present fixed ssséts and movable sssety snd second charge on present and fture receivabbes and fature
fined andd movable nssets.

() Terms of secured short term borrowings from bamks;
Cash exedit and working cupitsl demand |oans camy interest ranging between 7.50% to 9.65% per anmim compused on a manthty hais oo the schus] mmount wtilised, snd sre repaysble on demand.

Shert term borrorwings Bom bhanks ane seoured by:
= Charge on present and flture current assets and movable fived sssets af the subsidinry.
= Letier of comfrt by the Holding Conspany,

(v} Loan from relvbed parties

The compary hins borrowed unsecured funds fhom Delldvery Limibed {formerty known as Dethivery Privaie Limited) carrying inketest ranging between §,73% 1o 10% per annum and are repayshle
in fve equal annos] installment.

[vi) Unused lime of credit
Thie below table provides the details of un-demwn credit facilities that are avaitabile to the company:

Anwt Asat As pt

March 31, 2011 Mareh 30, 2031 Aprl 1, 2020
Secured loans TASAT LT 206,85
18, Tradle payabibes
Pertlculurs Asat Axat As at

Mureh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Aprdl 1, 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro emterprises ond small enterprises frefer mote 17 14,03 1530 b6
Total cutstandiug dwes of creditors oiher thin micro enferpriacs and small enierprises 1.330.32 134437 B60.13

L (LA (58

*Trade prysbles are nor-inlerest bearing and sre pormsally settled on 0-50 days tenms.
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(Al emovent in INK Millioas mnlens odhernize sheted)

18, {a) Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022

Taotal outstamding dues of méon enberprises ard small

Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other fluan micro enterprises and small enserprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors nther than micra enterprises and small enterprises

As at March 31, 2021

Total putsaniding dues of migro enterprises and small enterprises

Total patstaniding dues of croditor otlwer than micro enerprises and small enlerprises
Dispuied dues of micr enterprises and small enterprises

Dimpated dues of creditors other then micre enterprises and small emerprises

As it April 1, 2020

Tatal outstanding dues of migro snierprises and small enterprisss

Total outstonding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enserprises
Disputed duss of micro enterprises and small emterprises

Diputed dues of creditor otber than méco enterprises and small enterprises

Outstunding for following periods from dwe date of payment

Less than | Mare ihan 3
d
Thled mot due Unhilled yeur 1-1 years 1-3yenrs ot Totl
- - 14m - - 14,03
109,33 140,57 95985 - 1579 4,38 1,230
10039 14057 FT3.50 - 1579 a3 1aaas
Oristansding for fallvwing p ds fram itue date of pay
Less than 1 Mare than 3
Rilled not d'ﬂ: Unhilled yeur 1-2 years 2-3 years AN Tatal
1273 - 164 - - - 1539
1354 42515 254,42 1143 47 (] | 34337
46,71 (A 5708 A3 i 170 i3976
Outstnading for following perbods from dwe date of payment
Mletwctdse Unplieq eEIEL o um zayes Tortmd
EET 236 0,95 - - N B2
146,47 22574 450, 18 520 123 0,32 860,12
7 230,10 AEL1T 530 5] 031 Aeh. 14




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the Finunclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2033
AT aremporeet e MR Aony sl otherwiie steniedd)

19, Other nancial liabilities
Partleulars As at Axat As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2821 April 1, 2030
Current
Sm!.nw doponits 1632 1651 IE21
Capital credismr InET 100, &0 ah
Inierent accmed but not dise on borowngs B1.23 1348 441
Payahle 1o emphovess (refer note 35) 165,31 T BE.NT
13353 130,70 93,50
i, Pre (3
Partheulars Asar Asat At
. March 31, 2012 March 31, 2821 Apeil 1, 2020
Pravisions for gransity 53 6E.73 A7 04
Provisions far compenssted absences N7 18,16 15,05
96,01 86,49 TAT
Breakop of above-
Man-current
Prowisiona fr gramity 08,94 5605 5671
68,99 S6.08 5672
Current
Prowviskons for gramuny .32 12.68 1034
Provisbons for compensated shasnces 20.72 1516 18.08
1704 3084 1830
21, Diher current Habilies
Porticulurs Asat Al As il
March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 3821 April 1, 2020
Seattory liabilies 117.03 19.68 3517
11703 1468 1517
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Notes to the Financial Stntements for the year emdd March 31, 2022
(AN awsourt i INR Miilions wmlers otherwine taied)

11, Revenne from conircis with '

For the yeur ended

Tarticiiam Fur the year endesd
Mareh 30, 2022 Rtarch 31, 2021
Sale uf wrvices
Mevetme fom pant reck losd services 9.5:58.582 161781
§,950.51 161781
Driver operating nenme
Income from sale of wnclaired fiems 10.57 128
5569, 7
I ihe Folkowing inble, neverme from coetract with castomers disaggregated by prinury geographical market @
(1) Revenue from comtracts with cuxt
Partiemkary For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2022 March M 2031
- indin 955053 TH1THI
= Riesd of the workd . -
Total revenue rom aperatinns 0,958.51 TAETAL
Mian than by timing of revemne léhan
Particuinr For ihe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Services rendered over time 595852 760781
Serviges rendered pair in time = -
Tod FRELES] BT
{iii) Comtrael balences
The following table provides information about trade receizabies and contrac pasets fFom cusiveners ©
Purtlculers Asat A at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2921
Trade Recetvubles (Unconditional right 1o couideration) 1.'155.ﬁ [FATNE]
Contract assets. (refier note | belaw) 61741 ATA 81
(v} Chaapes in comtract mesets ure as follows:
Partboulan For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Opening halance 474.81 203.08
Acdd: Contracts nusets crested dhiring fhe year 54350 ATARE
Less: Contrcts nssets billed during the year (A05.99) (203,085
Clasing halance 61741 47481
Mote:
1. The contrace mrscts primanly relate 18 the company’s rights fo consideration for work coerpleted but not billed ot the reporting date. The contract sssets ore ransferved to the recefvables
when the rights become unconditionad,
2}, [hibver Imcome:
Particulars Far the year ended For the your raded
March 31, 2022 Mierch 31, 2021
Imterest income om
- Dank depenits at smonioed cosl Lk ] 320
- Inscome tx refund 506 -
- Uniwindiing « I descoant on security deposirs paid ELEC 613
Rent concession on bexsa labililie - 16893
ABlowanoe fior bad aod doukdful debts wiitten back, net Il | -
Prafit on temmination af lense 34.03 a4r
Prollt on sale of property, plam ond equipment (net) (.08 -
LIRS pIEA]




Epron Logeticy Frivate Limited
Notes to the Flnsnclel Stwiemenis flar v year ended Mar-+ A1, 2033
FAIT grisvsind oy TN Yt e oilieridrs maied)

Parficulary For he year coded Var the yoar ented
March 31, 123 Mareh 31, 202
Lmched charges FRET] FXTTRT
Perkepand delivery charges 1983, 72 Loz
e bk M1
Frmrchines fowninrioy 0. L, T
Packing maberivy sed conmirsbdes 4106 BIE |
Maspears and cotyans chango il wina
el [nfer ridbe 240 17 74,11
eALE SIILEE,
25, Exvrpliy i Bind 15 g
Farticulars Far the year snied Far the yrar ended
Mraryh 31, 2013 Margh 3, 3031
Salaney, vages and allowances BT Tl 1
Granery eazense {pefe mste 11 1624 1487
Bl yinck nphuom exprmon 18148 e
Conmibution to prosident fumd and ather fands. 4508 20
Snaf welller cpemse &LxT 808
Losor 1T
26, Finases ewsts
Farticutary For (he year eaded Fer the yrar civl
March 31, 2027 Marh 31, 2031
lnteren
= I om berrmeing Frs 1
= Imborent o lavm Srom related party M .
= Imerest om non convertible debermanes 1618 11164
« Inierest om thaes i micro and wred] ciorprisn sl L
- Itgrend con e bbilition T
% &
2. Dryergintion ped amivative myymene
Fartirulnry For ihe year esd=d For the year end=
h f
Depereiaiun ol jeoperty, plast st epropenet 127 [
Amertizahon nf poodsill o g 3El
Amonaton of mtangile s o 147
Diepresciation of right-f i swets (el aose W) el bt k]
T8 LT
IR Diiher expewes
Farticutnrs Fov tso your paded Far tha year enied
Mwreh 31, 031 Mareh 31, 30
LLeexs and lere chargrs [TE) FTE]
Peates s taven im a1
Pirorer mned ot Rak A%k
e nainesance 281 hED
Tnsarance 1w LEY
Itpmairs and maimesamce
- pint gl chrinery m FAT
= thers Pt [ ]
Lgad sed profemoms] duargs A 3 e |
wesmanerao (reler ho wole 300} 470 L
Travelling and comveyance e 1LE
Prmting and shinonery T T
Alloweanes for had and doshiful debi, ne . (7R ]
Prosram for deulrful sdvaros 13LEH *
Infirmation iechrolagy service cost ALY A57T
Ttangihie sasies wrimen ofT * am .
Commmmication ool . 198
Dk charges. st 47
amil dedriy wrines off 3T w3
Bevurify erpres WTE 1.5
Rabew e markcting ooy avey ¥R 1
L0 AT

* Dharirg fhe yene , the conpasy ke wrinem ofT the solftware Le. "Espoiom Nexd G, which wan beisg devrloped with the support of vesdor Capgemend om which the otal exprise soemed anoentsg w [NR 13,5
illioni. Axa remll of soquinition of the proap by fhe Delbivery Limsted the software which was in development page became redmdany, m the wtimate panest ooempany alnesdy e the softwant in plisos.

28, Awfliors resseyplion
Partitulur Faur ihe year raved For rbe year ended
Mareh 31, 10X1 1
Emnnory nidt [ i
Tus sudiy [R5 ([ RE]
O o pacet Cxprees teimbrsd . iy
hu ] 10,
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WA avsrary dn IR MW ¥oir ikees arfuriie vl

I%. Enrnings per slars

Blasic Farnisgs Per Share (FF5) and Dilted Exmings Per Shure {EPS) amossty sre exloabeind by devirling the lom for the year amvibtasle b sty sharehalders of e Holding Company by the weighasd srerage
iy of Equity shaees sutaanding during (e year.

The fellowing teflects e cnover and vhare data msed i fle besic aed et EFS compeantions -

Particalars Fur the ye== =uipd For ithe year caded
Mk e Mkl
Lo witrhut®sle Ao enoity steesholdens alihs Haldi g TCemtiy {1X249) e+ EET)
Perbser ef ool o share: #; Hiz "eglaning o the yeas 1938558 LR TR
hirh, Veighted aveaps ot e 51 550 1181579
Cestsed prrese mandr o ety shanm eonesiErod for cateulation of Balc carwes per paie TOLLIT.II SATIAAN
Teumbrer o aliars 35 lewwd igxm racrcise of THOP - pAR282
Wghtod remape wrter of equity shanss considered foe saleulrtion of Diied cammings per share LOAIT Ll LB 8016
Enruings per sbare
B 17503 [IEY 1Y
Debstta] [1.51) fam
S Buerptunat o
Partleslnry For the year ended Far the year endnd
Mimrrh 31, 102 Mareh 11, 1021
lrmpairmvemd of grodwill 5;5 .
1 -
Thirmig the joar mmdod vk 11, 102, the momagersent hay impmined paosaiil e om prarciman off THT in it arstirety ms masngneont does. net foneses amy synergy Benells flowing to e gioun smounting o BN

1798 mittion. Inview of this mprecedertied even, fhe memagonen b oonsidercd & nhﬂ*d‘hu-_r crmrse aof bumimems and mocoedagty dsclossd il is “Exereeml” in f Finanea| v




Spaten Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2022
{All amourt n TN Millions wnless ooherwise sared)

3. Significant nocounting judgements, estimates nnd assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires managemert 1o make: judgements, eatimates and assumptions that affeet the reporied amounts of revenues. expenses. mssets and
Hinbilitées, and the sccompanying disclosures, and the dischosere of contingent lishilities, Uncertainty sbout these pssumptions and estimntes could result in outeowes that require o material
adjustinent to the cormying smount of nasets or Habilites affected in fatare periods.

Judgerments ) : :
I the process of apylying the accounting yolicl:s, management has made the foliowng fadgements, which have the most significant cifict on the amounts recogrised i e Financisl

Esiimates snd assumpt'ond

T key sssumptivn, soncemning the funare and ciher key sources of estimation uneertaingy st the reporting date, that have & significant risk of causing o material ndfustinent 1o the cormying
rmounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are described below, Toe Cotrpany beted its nssumptions and estimates an parmmeters avallable when the summary
stutemerts were prepaned. Existing circumstances and msumptions about future developments, however, may change dus b market changes or circumsmnces arising that are bevond the
conitol of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

(i) Share-hnsed payments:

Emplayees of the Holding Company receive remunermtion in the form of share based paymen tmnsnctions, whereby emplovess render services as consideration for equity instruments
{equity-seitied tmnsnctions). In sccondance with the Ind AS 102 Shere Based Pay:nents, the cost of equity-setiled tmansactions [ neasured using the fair value method. The cunwlative
expense recognized for equity-seitied tramsactions ot each reparting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting periad has expired and the Company's best estimate of
the number of equity instraments that will alifmately vest. The expense or credit recognizerd in the Stotement of Profit snd Loss for the year represents the movement in camulative expense
recogmized as ot the beginming and end of that year pod is recognized In employee benefits cxpense.

{ii) Delined benefit plans (Gratmity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation sre determined using actiarial valuations, An sctanrisl valuation fnvolves rmaking varins
aasummptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These iclude the determination of the discownt rate, Riture salary increases aned monlity mies. Due 1o the complexities
involved in the valuntion and its leug-ienn nature, & defined benedit obligntion & lighly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions ane reviewed ot each reporting period.

The paranster mast subject to clange is the discount rate. bn determining the approprinte discount rate for plais operated, the management comiders the interest rics of governmeni bonds
in cuncnaics consistent with the comencics of the post-employment bemeflt shtigation.

“Thoe ioriality rate is based on publicly avaitsbte ity table , The manality table tend to change only ot inferval in response to demographic changes, Futire saiary fncreasss amd gratity
increases nro based on expected future Btinton rses,

Further details about gratuity obligntions are given in note 32,

{ill} Fnir value measprement of fnanclal instrimments:

When the fair vabues of finencial sssets ond financinl Nabilitics recorded in the Financial Statements cnnnot be measured based on quated prices in nctive markets, their fair value i
measured wing valuation techniues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from abservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Judgement is required in catablishing fair volues. Tudpements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity riak, eredit risk and volstility, Changes in assumptions sbout these factors
could affect the reperted fir value of financial instruments.

(v} Lenve:

The kense payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual valee pusrmitess and paymenss of penolties for ferminating the Yense, if the leass term reflects the lessee
excrelsing an option o terminate the Jense. The lease lishility is subssquently remessared by increasing the carrying asmount 16 reflect interest on the fease Hability, reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lense payments axsde and remensuring the carrying amount to rellect any reassessment of lease modifications or 10 reflect revised in-substance fixed lense pryments.

The Company cannet readily detenmine the intercst mbe implicit in the lesxe, therefore, it uses iis incremental borrowing rate (IBR) 1o messune lease lobilities. The [BR s the mee of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over & slmilar term, snd with a similsr security, the funds necessary to obtain an assct of & similar valoe to the sipli-oFase ssct in o
similar cconomic environment. The IBR. therefore reflects whal the Company “woald lsve to pay', which requires extimation when no observable raies are avallable or when they need 10
be ndjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease . The Company estimates the 1BR wsing observable inpats (such os market imterest rates) when available and i3 required to mike
certnin emitv-specilic estimaes.

() Useful Life of property, plant and sqnipment:
The weful Tife of the aasets are determined in accondance with Schedule 11 of the Uonnpaties Act, 2013, In casss, wiere the wseful lite is different Frami that prescribed in Schedule 01, it in
based on technical sdvice, wking into sccount the nature of the asset, the estimaiod usage of the mset, fe opernting conditions of the asset, past Iidsory of replncement and aiticipeted
technological chages, '
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31 Significont pecouniing judgements, estimates and sxsamptions jeontinued)

{vi) Loss allowance on trade recelvalibes:

Provision for expected credit losses of e recivables: The Company uses a provision masrix to caleukans FCLs for trade recejvables. The provision mies sre based on montha past due for
groupings of varioss customer segments that have similar loss pasterns {Le.. by geography, product type, customer type ond rating, s covernge by letrers of eredis and other forms. of credit
irsurance). The provision matrix & initially based on the Company’s historical observed defisull mtes. The Company will calibrate the matrix to ndjust the historicsl credit loss experience
with forward-loaking information, Al ﬁnyhhmdmnd:mmﬁuimmmmm%»druddmmmh forward-Inoking estimates are analysed. Tha assesiment
of the comelation betwoen historical observed defuull rates, fonsan seomomis 'condrticns ad BT is 8 sfoertSean) catimate. The amount of BCLs is sensitive 1o chonges i cirewnsinngss
ail of foreenst econvmic conditions, The \-vlwlmnﬂlmhﬂmﬂﬂllﬂ forscast of ecitiomie conditions may abio riot be representadive nfcustomer’s actusl defadt in the
Fiuture, The information abotil B ECL on the Company's trade recenvables is disclosed in Mote 9, I certain cases, the Company may also consider a finencial ssset 1o be % defudt wlien
intermal of caterne| infarmation indicotes that the Company is unlikely i recefve (e asttanding condrtunl nnounts in firil befors imking o accoun 20y crodit enbencements held by tha
Company, A finsncinl maset B written off when there is no reascnable expectation of resovering the contractunl cash Mows

{vif) Meferred Taves:

Deferred income tax mssed are recognised o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be svailable apainst which the defuctible iempornry differences, and the corry forward of
unissed tnx eredits and unused ta Tosses can be utilized. Deferred income tox labilities are recognised for all mable emporary differences.

{wiii} Impairment af Goadwill;

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash penerating unit (CGU) based on the fture cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated fitre
operating resilts and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed wsing intemal forecasts. The discount rte used for the
COLUMS nepresent the weighted sverape cost of capiil based on the historical market retums of comparable compnnies.

{lx) Provisians and contingenches:
The recognition and measurement of ofher provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and eircummtnnces known ot the
reporting date, The actual outflow of resources at a fature date may therefore vary from the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

(xjRevenoe Reconginition (Tml AS 115 :

The nllocation of tle transaction price over timing of satisfaction of performunce obligation:

Under the revenue recopnition standard Ind A5 115 revenue lwe boon sucnmiesd when control over the services tramsfers to i cuztomer Le., when the customer laas tbe ansiity 1o control
the use of the trnsfermed services provided and pen=rally derive their resmaining benefits, The revense fom logistics service is recopmised over o peicd ol ine,

The compary has necogaized the revenue in respoct of undelivered shaprivents b the extent of coapleted activities undertaken with nespeet 10 delivery. A1 pericd end. the company, based on
its trackding systens clngsifics the ongoing shipments in transit into stages of delivery (first mile, linchaul, tast mile) and applies estimmbed percentnge of service comphetion 1n reecpiie

reverue which is ealeulated on the basis of nunmber of days the shipment has been in trnsit from the pickup dnte Il reporting date o3 & pereenings of average davs token to deliver these
shipisens from the elckup date,
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32, Gratulty plan

a) Defined Contribwtion Plans

The Conapany mskes coetribution, determired a5 a rpecified percentage of employee sahr'es in repovt »f qualifiing emplayeen bowards Provident Fund und state plans such as Employees’ Stato
Insurance (ESI), which is a defined contribution plan. Toe Company s no obligstions ciher than to ke the specified contributioms, The Company confributian is recognised us an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the perind in wiich ihe eriployes renders the related services,

Drurieg tha year, the Company has recognised the following smounts in the Statement of Protit snd Loss, which ane inchded in contribation to providest and ether funds:

Particniars e J For o venr emfed Far ihe year reded
3 Miarck 3, 3022 Manch 3, 2021
Brovident Purd and Einplayes's rr:;im.'.«l:hnu o 5738
Employees” State Insurance h.l4 305
4836 424

bl Defined Benefit FMans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benelit plan (the Gratuity Plan), 1o its employees, The Gratulty Plan provides o lump sim payment to vested employees, af retiremens of termination of
employineni, of an mmourt based on the rexpective enig'nyee’s lagt drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The gratuity plan of the Company is non-Funded,

Reconciliation of opening and closing baances of (ke present value of the defined benefit obligation,

(i) Change in projected enefit abligations Muarch 31, 2032 Mareh 31, 3021
Openine defined benefit oblimtion G8.7) 6708
Trterest oot A48 am
Currerd service ¢ost 1176 (1131

paid sy (2.96)
Agctunril gain om abligation {5.14) (10,03
Claing defined henefit obligation a0 8.7
MNon-current 68.59 56,08
Current 632 1268

il Reconciliation of present value of the obllgation and the falr value of the plan assets:
Fair value of plan xssets al the end of the yaer

Presend vabue of the defined benefit ohligmions at the erd i theyesr 7 Sckil e PRI, . - | A - - \
“ Liability recognised In the Babnee Sheet XTI 68,731
W) Exped se recoznlsad bn e Statenent of Profit and Loess
Far the yeur ewded For the vear ended
Muarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Current serdoe cost (8 Bl 10,63
merest cont 448 A0
Net gratulty cost a4 1167
{iv) Remeasnrement galng in other comprehensive nemms Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 3, 2021
Actimrial Oain dee 1o Demographic Assumption changes in DBCH L33 234}
Actuarial Gain from changes In finarcial assumprions (207 (246)
Experience adiastnents [5.400 (483}
Amount recognised In OC] during the year (.14} (10,00}
iv)  Aenearial assmmpibons —March 3, 2083 March 31,2021
Discount rate 7.08%: GE%
Salary growth mie B.O0% .00
Alsrition rate 22.00% 26.00%
Mormal retirement age 00 yury 60 years

Diseount rater The discouni rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Endian government securities ns 21 the balance sheel date for the extimated 1erm of he abligniions,

Sabury grewth rate: The estimates of future saiary increeses, comidensd m aetiaial vulwdicn, dnkes into sccound inflation. ssnicaty, promotiow cnd ather relevant fictors such: as supply and demand
fattors in the employment ket IR <

Attritien rate: The estimate of {uture employes kmover,
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3% Groimity plan {continued)
(vik A quaniitative sensithvity analysis for significant ssumptian as at March 30, 2022 anid March 31, 2021 is 2 shawn below:

The sensitivity analyses above hiave been determined based on 3 method that extrapolutes the impact on defined bemefit ohtipation b8 a tesult of reasanable changes in key nssamplions occirring af fhe
end of the reporting period,

Particulan March 31, 2612 March 1
Dhscourt mie
Incresse by 1% (531} {5807
| Drecrease by 1% 0l A8
Futute salary istrense
| Increzse by 1% 517 568
Decresse by 1% [4.78), (5.11)
Anrition -ates
|tncrease by 1% (013 10,78}
Decrense by 1% ity 082
ortakity rates
Incrense by 10% (0.G2) (0.03}
Deecrense by 108 0.0 .03

(vIif) Marurity prafib af the defined heaefls shligation
Expeeted undisenanted cash Sows over the next :

Year Muarch 31, 22 Muareh 3, 2021
Q-1 63 1808
13 19.58 1203
Ahbove § 11818 H%.50

The welghted avernge durmion of the defined henefil plan olligation at the end of the reporting period is 8,18 (March 31, 2021: 7.05)

(Thiz dpvace his bewent dniewdfonilly fef blank)
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). Shwre-based payments

Emgplover stuck optlon plan 2013

The Swrirek Logisties Private Limited ESOP 2013 (now cafled as Spoton Lagistics Private Limited) was approved by the Basrd of Directors of the Holding Compsny in June 2013 and by the shareholders in
August 2913, The ESOF 2013 plan provides the maximnm evercisshle share into not mere than 3% paid up capital to the employees. The plan is asdministersd by 0 Board or o nsh commibiee. The plan was
revised and appeoved by the board of direceors and shareholders of the Holding Company on April 02, 2019 snd ieéal nignber of Emplayes Stock Options 1o be gronted unier the Sieck Option Scheme was
incrensed t 9% of paid up capital, Optiems will he issed 10 employses of the Holding Company at an exercise price, which shall he determined mmd estabtished of an egquity share in the rocent funding
immediately preceding the dute of gram or any other price not less than the face value of the shares a3 determdned by ihe Baard. The equity shares covered under these pptions would vest nat more than five
years from the dide of gram of swch options.

Employee stock aption plan 2008;

The Spoton Loginics Privete Limited BSC-2018 was approved by the Board of Disectors of the Holding Compasy und sharebalder effoctive from October 12, 2008, The ESOF 2018 plan provides for the
issue of 1300,00C apsicns to the emplovers. The plan s administered by 8 Board of o sub commmistee, Dotiony will be fsed to employees of the Holding Cempany ol an exercise mice, which shall bhe
datertrined and enablished of i squity dhure in the recent fumding, trmrediatery pecoding Vi don of prant or a=e ciher =iz ot bes i the fage it of the shares s determined by the Board. The equity
i aoveord imder thitwe vptioas 1ouk] vert 522 fair than five yours from Lhe date of praet of sech nptions, Opticn activity during the year ended March 31, 2021 and t1e refaed weiglhied Averape svorchse
prive ol st il wisdes the Spaton Logtatics Private Limived ESOP-T018, s presemed nelow:

Alnvememts durlag thi paevieus year
The following tabls ilustrates the pumber and weighted sergs evencin prices (WAEP]} of, and mevements in, share opticns during the year:

2003 Seleme
|Partlealirs Fi erdee March A1, 200
Number of options Weighted average exercise price
Cptices cutsinding a1 e beginning of i 627473 50
o {he end al'ibe 627,575 £
Wi 627,578 Eil

Far the year ended March 31, 2021

Number of eptions Welghted average evercise price
[RNED] 2I7
14 707 217
1,04, 237 |
1 17 Fri
4, 79,070 -

Tise welghted avernge rempining contmetual e Far b2 siack oplions outstanding are 2 yenrs.
ke weighiad avernge fir valie of the aption grenbed Jduming the finaacial year 2021 {5 TNR 365,
“oeal expenst ariaing from share based pavnent iransacticn for (he vear ended March 31, 2021 is TNR 27.93 million.

The follewing tables list the inputs to the vred for the share based L plam for the March 31, 20211
Purticukin

As ai March 31, 2021
Dividend yield (%) 0.00%
Hapecsed voleiility (%) I326%
Task—free inberess raze (%) 632N
Espected lifo of thare aptions [im yeand) 4
Waelghted svérage share price (INT. ) [EE]
Model msed DOlack Schobes model

The expected Efie of the share vplions is based on lisorieal data and cwrrent expectatians and i not necessarily indicative of eneecise patierns that may posur. The expected valatility reflects the assumgtion
that the histarical valatlity over a period shinilar to the 1o of the options i ndicative of fanme rends, which may slso not necessssily be the actual mscome.

mufu-m;l.m:.mmmmmuu.uzumumumu.mmnrwmmwmmmmwmhmum@iﬁmﬂm
logistics privane lmited some of the employeed were issued ESOFS by the parent entity (Delhivery Limited {fanmerly known as Delhivery Private Limited)) a3 a resalt their ESOP ot for those emplayes s
alao transfierred 1o the company, Below are the details of shares faued by the parent entity:

The Rlkowing table Dbustrates the nurnber and wes exercisg prices amd movements. share options during the year:

Niarch 31, 1053 — =

Mo, of eptions WAER (Hs)
Ouistanding at the beginning of the yerr - .
Grramed during the year |2,75, 300 oin
Forfeited dering the yeor (17850 0.1
Cancelled durirng the yrar = .
Enercaed during fhe year » .
Coutstunding i the end of fhe year 12.57,8%0 LT
Exercisable at the e of the vear 12,57, 400 oig
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The weighted avernge renuining contrachuel 1ifk for the stock options outstanding as ar Masch 31, 2023 is 26% vears. The mnge of exsrcise prices for cptions outstanding at the vear end was s 0,10 10 s,
1. The weighted mverage Euir value for the siock options gramted dusing the year is ts 303,20,

The fiallowing tables fist the inputs 1o the models used for the GESP plans for the year ended March 31, 2022, 1espertively:

Mlarch 31,2022
Expected volatiity (%) 48 5% 1o 59.4%
Riske~free interest rate (%) 41% 10 5. ™%
Expected o of shane aptiom 4 years
Weighted average share price (Ra) LA
Model uged Bilack Schalies Dption Pricieg Model

The: expectod fife of the share options (s bosed on historical data and current expectations and is not necessaeily indicative of exercise patierns that may oocur. The expected volatility reflects the sssumption
that the histocical volatility over a period similar to the life of the eptions is indicstive of fubare trends, which may nlso not necexsanily be the sctvl caicome,
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34, Leases
Company &= n lessee

The Compary has lense contracts for office premises having o Jesse term rnping from 129 years.
Set out belaw are the enrrving nmounts of right-of-nee assets recoguised and the movements during the year

ROU Aswet
As st Apeil 1,2020 702,00
Additions #4702
Dreletions (3:22)
Deprecistion expense 327913
Ax ut March 31, 2021
Additions 176,73
Deletion {634.38)
Deprecintion expense (401,41}
As ot March 31, 2021 46,53
Set out belaw nre the carrying nmonnts of lease liahiiics and the movertents during tr yonrt
' Lease Hablilties
As at April 1, 2070 434,24
Additions 43279
Deletions {5.69)
Accretion of mterest 6367
Payments {354.80)
Hent conocssion on lense liabilities (16.93)
Ax af March 31, 2021 05314
Additions 165.31
Deletions (668.41)
Aceretion of interest 1274
Pavinents {414.61)
As it March 31, 2022 104.31
The following Is the break-up of cumrent and noi-gurrent lease linbilities:
Particalars As ot As at As at

March 31, 1022 March 31, 2021 _April 1, 2020
Current leate Hobilities 8233 318 28068
Non-current bease Hobilities 15938 G146 54456
Closing halance 108,31 95328 B4
The following sre the mmounts recopnised in siatement of peodit and loks
Frrticulars For the year ended  For the vear ened
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deprociation expense of right-ol-use assets 40141 n1a
Interes, xpense on ease liobilities 7274 53,67
Profit on tennination of lense .03 47
Rent concession on lease lisbilities - 16.93
Expense relating to shart term lease 137.08 74.13
Totnl amouni recognised in stitement of profit and Loss 64526 FTENT]
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual manurities of lease Habilfides on an undi d bagis;

Partheulnrs Asnt An ot As at
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Less than one yesr 0034 37758 Jpa23

Ohie to Four years 11308 644,91 ms9%

Mare than four yenrs - 53 26,49

Choning balance 213.32 LU31.02 996.70

COVID-19 related rent concessinm

The Comparny has opted for the proctical expesdicnt for rent concession lssued by Ministry of Corpornte AfTairs in which Companies are not required to reassess the Jease ns
madification snd recognize the gnin as income in profil and loss,

The Company does not face 8 liquidity risk with regord to its lense lishilities & the current pasers are sufficient to meet the obligations related 1o lease linbilities ns and wihen they
Tall due,
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15, Helated party transacibons:

Names of refsted portics and relutod party relationship:
Belated parties unider Ind A5 24;
1. Enterprises having control over the Company

L Emterprises having significant influence over the Company

A, Key management personmel

4, Subsidiary

£ Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP ond relative of
KMP

6. Fellow Subsidiaries

Diethivery Limited (formerly kmown s Dellivery Private Limived) (weef 24 August
2021)

Samara Alernate Investment Fund {upto Augis 23, 2021)
Samara Capital Parmers Fumd 1T Limited {apio Aogust 23, 2021)

Abhik Miva — Marsying direcior und CED

Kriskma Chandrasckar « Chief Frmancal Officer
Pavithra I' - Company Secremry

Devinjit Singh - Director (upto Augast 23, 2021)

Perumal Ramamurthy Sonivasen - Director (upto August 23, 2021}
Goutam Gode - Director (upto August 23, 2021)
Abhishek Kabra - Dinector (upio August 23, 2021}

Ajith Fai Mangilore - Addiional Directar {w.e.f August 24, 2021)
Sonutsan Rajan {Independent director woef 13 Ocober 2021)

Amiy Agarwal - Additional Director (w.e.f Auguss 24, 2021 il Ociober £, 2021)
Ponja Gupta - Additional directos (woef October 06, 2021)

Spoton Supply Chatn Solutbms Privale Limited (formerly known as Raag
Technologies and Services Private Limited) (“refemed a8 the Subsidiary™y

Rangan Mamfacturing Services Private Limited {Raghaven Narnsimban snd Pallav
Aguvind - Sharcholiers und Dhirectors)

Orian Supply Chain Private limited (W.ef Aug 24,2021}
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35, Mebatid party tramaction (castinued)

aFThi fiflowmg b U samimary of Bgmificam jansacions wzh ieaiad patio fir te o

£.%a oo wf the Blelnied party “ature of tramartinm Yeur eniled Vour smdoid
March 11, 1832 | March 31, 3021
Vrassaction far | Tremactis fer
Ehe year
| [Spoum Supply Chair Sobetons Priveo Limibed | frmery knows s Rasy  [Revesue- Salo of service aa A1
Techimbogics and Sarvices Privmte Limiisg) —
] Eapmer mwarmt by u im bl of group company [RET] 11
R e : ot
4 [ Foand 1} Livw 2 16 el
3 | Nggnenis Fynd Parmers 1 > Lk
® ] - [TRE]
T Abiek k. Diegcor layog 1340
L] Krmhuig Clundeaschar o ¥ T4l |
B __Pushory Ky sasmjusial penmuicration {inchuling appliovhie el of servibe bemulils) it g
18 | Pethivery Limiied ¢formerty kniswn o Defhivey Provae Lomsd) lreress m Llsseoornd lorm L] -
" Shant 1 b ingi-Li J Lioans L2 T3 -
1 S8, Aice EpEithcy 507 -
13 w incurrml by w on bdelf of iy 423 =
14 Servicn Recetved 11.4% -
15 [ibros Suppily chien Proviee lested E intcrred By s o sl ol L 1M =

Wy mariagerial remuncmtion inchelos o time bonss ssoustg w INE 3000 million paid i the aerent vear maded Mar 31, 202

The takey mamay

bt Tha Tibireirg is the sammany of bilsoces outnamding with relned partses as of par andind:

F gl inchudes ESOP et e doesn't inclode the provisions e for gratuity sul leave encasment, as they wre cbtamed an an sctuarial basis for the Holding Compesy and the Subwidary as o whoie

5Nu | Name of the Related parey Naturs of balinces Avmi An A at

Aareh 10, 2003 | Marce 31, 31 1.2020

] wumthmhnnumﬂqmmnkq Trade recetvables Tous (B R -

Technofoples aml Services Privaie Limised)

] U gt aseets - Linkilind revesue 741 .28 .

] OFoer sy diagls - e -l (R 4.5 =

4 | Defhivery Limued | Femwezly knews s Defkivery Privane Limsed) L3 Tl - =

¥ Ot puriem Tinancial hatuigies < Imeves) socyuc] et g dus oz b i [ NE] a -

f Tirmde | 1668 = -

7 (] frer g iy {LET] - .

] Cnber recaeahin 2882 -

5| Dvio Suppty clain Frieses mied Tinde payables a0 : :

10| Aishis Mitra (YT AT 0.76

11 | Krdma Chandmigeiarn iher curren Cnsscial lahilities [ET] [] .5 |

N (T (et carye (rmeescal Nshilitics #g [TH
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I, Segmenh repovting

The comaany’s Lusivess setivitles which are primarily domestic reod wapipon wrvices engeged b domestic cargo shipments by Lad md the enly geograghical scpment i3 India’, Thess
sezivities falks within o single reporiable segmen: as the CEO of the Cormpray (CO1 reviews the frmncial perfonmance of Logistic services on Connlidated basls, Accandingly, the Ajures
sppearing in these finaneial satements relate 1o 1 Company’s singls business scgmer.

Majar customer

wmwmnﬂ-m‘smmnﬂmm&uﬂmI{fhnfhw'wmrmﬂﬂimm”mmmutmmlh
custoamers 1o be disclosed.

The compamy's revenss fram operations and non curtent assets are within India onky.

{This space has been nterionally lef blank)
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37, Detaids of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined vnder MSMED Act 2006

The Minkstry of Micr, Small and Mediom Enterprises has &30ed an office memormdam diied 26 gt 2908 wlsch recommends that the Mioro wnd Small Envemrises should mention (s theie
conespondence with it cusrmers the Enreprsewurs Memorandum Number ax allocuted after flling of the Musatandin In necordance with fhe *Micrn, Small and Medivm Enserprises Duvelapren
At 2006° ("the Act’). Accondingly, the discloaure in respect of the amounts payabie i much enberprisss as s Llarck 31, 2032, March 3o, 3321 and Al [, 2520 hos bean made in fhe Financial
Samements hased on iformation recefved sad aveilable with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impart of inierest, if nay, fnt may be payable in sccordaney with the provisiens of
the Act is pot expecied 1o be material. The Uoepany has net received any clain for interest Srom eny supplic as at the halance sheet date.

Partlembirs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Ageril 1, 2020
The principal pmount and the interest due therecn memaining unpaid 1o 2ny sapplier at the end of each secousting year:
Principal 12568 14.39 642
Intezest 1.35 1.0 0.0
The amount el insevest pald by the buver in jemma of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medfum E e Develeg Act, 2006,
wlomg with the amount of the paymes made 1o he suppbier beyond hwmmmmm
Primcipal 1439 b2 3
Teaerest 047 020 006
e amosmt o isderest due and paynble for ilse perlod of delay in making paymenst (which hmve been paid bt beyond the appointed day 0495 PR [

iduaring the year) bt without sdding the imerest speciflod under the Micro, Small and Mediom Enferprises Developmes Act, 2006.

The amount of inierest acerued and remaining unpasd ot the end of each scocunting year. 140 - 033

The amount of furiher imerest remaining due and prvable even in the succceding years, umil such date when the interest dues above 140 100 023
are sctunlly paid to the small enterprise, for the purposs of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under ssction 23 of the Micn,
Small and Medium Enterprises Developmeanm Act, 2006,

I8, Capital amd 0d%r cornnitments

Particutars Murch 31,2020 Rlarch 31,2021 April 1, 2020
Estsmated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital accoust (ret of advasces) 5273 4505 1641
Letter of comfint issued 10 lendor against credif facilitics svailed by the Subsidiary Company B0 00 -

39, Contingent Liabilities mot provided for;
Particuinn March 31,2022 Murch 31,2081 April 1, 2020

1. Service Tan

During year 201 7-18, the Commissioner of service tnx department had issised show rause notices (SCNs) for mising demands of TN
189.39 million and INR 12164 miltion on 38 March 2014 for the pericd from January 2002 1o March 2005 snd from April 2005 to
Jeme 2017 respectively, i respect of classification off services of the Company”s vendars as n Goods Transpont Agency for thas period.
The SCN alleged that vehicle hire services pvailed by e Company for transponting the goods of its customen both between tha cities
and wighin the city should be classified uder * Gocds Tremsportation Agency™ ( “GTA"™) s per section 3 (105) (zzp) of the Finanee
Act prior to Juby |, X0 2 and the Company ks required w0 pay the service tnxy ender the reverse tnx charge mechanism. The Company
had responded to these SCMsin 2017-18.

Dhering the year cndd March 31, 2019, the Dey passed adjudacation vrder on September 06, 2018 with o service tax demand of

INR 1#5.3% million and along with interest snd penatty of INR. 18939 miltion for the period from January 212 fo March 2013. The

Campany hes filed m appesl before CESTAT against the order affer paying INR 14.30 million under prosest. The SCN relating to the 63150 0043 BO0.A3
period from Agwil 2015 1 June 2017 is yet be adfudicited as at March 31, 2021,

Subsequent to the balence sheet date, an adjudication order passed by Principal Commissioner of Central Tax, Bangalore was received
on July 28, 2001 with & tex demand of TNR 22164 miltion abong with ineerest and penalty of INR 22.16 million for the persod from
April 2013 10 Jume 2017,

Mmhmmhqmﬁﬁmm;hmmnmﬁhﬂmwmﬂmuwh
ponition and does not anticipate sy financial Additionally, the Comgpany has deposited INTE 16.62 million being
T7.75% of the credit demanded i impxmged order in complaince with section J5F(ii) of the Central Excise Acs, 1944,




Spoton Leghtics Private Limited
Motes fo the Ninancial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
ALl wmicmne in INR Miillionr undess orherwise srared)

39. Contingent Liabilities mot pro-ided for: (eontined)

b} Sales Tax Depantment-Bilar

During the year 2017-18, the Assistant Commiissicner of Commervial Tax - Investigation and Boress (Bihar), has ralsed demand of
IR 3.34 million [irchiding ponalty) on falure of producing ststuory records iefioetng proges szemet al’ gords 1sder mrovinon of
section 61 of BYAT Act 2005, rend with Rule 41 of WOVAT rabes 2005, The Company fled & writ petliiion Sefome the Pama High
Court diraciieng the Depayament nod 1o take action 411 the Company’s application is hessd by e, Tribenal.

The Honle Higa Tourt upon hearing had directed the Dipartment not 10 tele sny coercive setion agairsl the Compamy for recavery of .
the Esprned senount 2l the Company's revision application was taloen up for bearisg by the Comsercinl Tax Triounsl. As of March 31, - - 534
2020, The Commercial Tax Tribumal was yet to hear the said maiter,

On March 09, 2021, the dispute has heen closed under the order of sertlement of Bihar Setflement of Taxation Dévpates Act, 2019, by
payment of INR 5,34 million.

) Dither mnttens

= Diemanals paot ackmowied ged by the Company 0,82 0,62 062
Legel caes pertaing bo cases pending in consurser forum and civil courts agsine compary, The company has been advised by its legal

counzel fhat it is possibile, but ot probuble, the action will ssceeed and accordingly no provision foe linbility has been reesgaized in the

financial statemnents,

Nate (1)

The Hon'ble Sapreme Count of India (SC) by their order dated Pebrunry 28, 2009, set out the principles based on which sllowances paid 1o the employees should be idenified for inclusion in baxic
wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fusd contribution, Thene are interpretative chaflenges and cosiderabile uncertainty, inchuding estimating the amouns retrospectivety. The Company
bz been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of Judgement retrospectively. Based on the legs! advice and in the absence of the reliakle measurement of the
pravision for earlier periesds, the Company has complied with order on & prospective basis, from the date of 5C Order, The Company considensd exposura related 1o the period befors the date of €
order and shown os & comtingent Habdlicy.

Nt (i)

Agpointment of Comparsy Secrelary

A5 per Section 203 of Companies Act 2013, resd with nilo ¥A of the Companies {Appaintmet and Rememeration of Mamsgerial Persomnel) Rules, 2014, if 2 Company does mot have a whale nme
Compary Seeretnry ("C5%), a Company shall be punishable with fne which shall pot be less fan TNR /.10 million bus which may extend 1o INR 0,50 millisn snd every director and key mansgenis!
persanie] of o Compay who i in dediult shall be punishable with fine which nery exiend fo INR 0.05 millian nnd where the comtravention {s 8 contiuing, with 3 funher fine which may extend fa [NI
1,000 per day until the date of appolmimenst.

Binee the pald up capital of the Comparmy ks INR 17652 million Le. mare than five erone rupees (ten croves woe.f Apeil 01, 2020 s amended vide notification dated Janwary 03, 202, Companies
[Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial !'mmi]kﬂu. 2014}, the Company was required to buve a whole fime CS, The Compary sppointed whale time ©F oa May 02, 2009 and masde jwo
compaunding applications with Reghtrar of Companies, one for compownding of offesse till November 032, ZOES () the time of adjudication provisgion became effective) and second for adjudication
from Mevember 02, 2012 (dute of effectiveness of adjudication provision) till May 02, 2019 (date of appointment of Conpany Secretsry). The Company's mamagement does pot expect significamt
pemaliy arising owt of fhe compounding proceedings.

{ifi) The Company was unable b hold its mnnual genernl meeting for Fiscal Year 2020 within the permitted timeline for holding such meetings dus to (he COVID-1% pandemic and cortain cther
adminfstrative delays, and wan delayed in bolding such a iny by four s and four doys. The Company has fhed a compoanding application dated Augusi 9, 2021 seeking compoanding for
such offence with the Registrar of Companies, Abunedatiad, The Company's management expect that the compounding will mot vesult In any ségnifican penalties 1o 1he Company,

(i} Contingent |iabilities disclosed nbove represent poasshle ohligations where possibilisy of cash outfiow 1o seitle 1he obligations is not remsoe,

{ii} Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is net procticable for the Company fo cstimate the timings of ensh oafflows, i any, In tespect of the shove as it is determinable only on receipt of
Jailgementsilecisions pending with various forumsfanthorities,

(i) The Compamy doesn expect sny reimbursements in respect of the abeve contitgent labslitios
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40, Expenditure on Corparate Soclal Respomibility Activities

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, o Compeny, meeting the applicability threshold, needs 1o spend st Jeast 2% of its average met profit for the immediately preceding three financial years
an corparate social responsibility (TSR) activities. The funds are allccated to the activities which are spocified in Schedule V11 of the Companies Act, 13, Detnila of the Company's CSR expenditure
e s Follows:

Tarticulars Murch 31,2022 March 21, 2021
{a) Girosa smount requined 10 be spent by the Company during the year -
Add: Unapent amuoust froen prioe years 341 anl
Tetsl Gross smount reuired 1o spent 361 411
() Amourt spent during the year ending
{) Construction/ncquisition of any ssset
i) Om purpese other than (i) above® 3,60 080
260 050
{c) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2022 In cash Yet to be pald in Tetal
i) Comstraction/scquisition ol any assel = i 3
il) On purpose ather than (1) above® 350 . 3,60
{if) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2021 In ensh Yt to be paid kn Total
i} Construction/acquisition of sny asset . - .
fi) O purpese cther than (i) above® 0,50 151 a0l
() Detafils related to speat | unspent obligniion: March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
i) Contribution 1o Public Tnast
if) Contribuition 1o Charitable Trsst®
1id) Unspent amnound in relation o
= Oageing projec - -
«  Oalser than angaing project .01 1461
w 161

.m“mnmwm“Mﬂwﬁ!ﬂ.mmmmiummwmmmmHnm,hmmhﬁwmﬂmunrma.ﬁl

million &% =t 1he year end truusferred 10 separate bank sccount on May 25, 2021 in necoedamce with Companies (Corparate Soclil Respoaibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021,CSR Projects have
mwmwhmmmmmm 83 of date, disburement already made for INR. 3.6 million.

41, Extimation uncertalnty relating (o the globad health pasdemic vs COVID-1%:

mmmummimrMWMMmmwmmmmmmmmmﬂ-m the operations and results of the
Compasy,

The Company's operations were impacted dus 1o the lockdown restrictions imposed by the Govemnment. The Management Is of the wiew that subsequent 1o the lockdown perlod, the operatbons of the
Cormpany a7e Teturming to normaley, However the Management ia chosely mosiioring oy foceseeable impact of COVID on the operations of the Company and |s coafident of obtaining regulur supply
of logistics services for foreseeabile period, The Management has also performed an exiensive snalysis of the immact of COVID on il assumptions ased in preparing thess financial statements and has
concluded that no sdjustments are required in these financial stntements on this sccount, The actual impact of COVID-19 on ihe financisl statements may differ (kom that estimated as at the date of
spproval of the finencial satements and the Company’s management continues 10 closely monibor any material changes 19 fiture economic conditions.

u.mcm.ms:ms-mu.mrm':Muuﬂmmmwuwmammmwwhwwm.mmmm
publistied in the Gazene of India, However, the dabe on which the Code will come inlo effect has not been notified and the final rulesfinterpretation have not yet been lusued, The Company will assess
the trpact of the Cede when it comes into effect and will record any related [mpact in the period the Code becomes effective, Based on & preliminary assesument, the Company believes the impact of
the change will not be significant.”

A3, Diber stntwtory Information
(T} Diisclesure of transactions with struck off compaies:
The company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under sec 248 of the companies Act 2003 or secthon 560 of companics act, 1956 during the fnancial year,
{ii} The Comgpany have nof ad d of loaned of itvesied funds to smy other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitles (Imermediaries) with the underanding that (e Intenmediany shall;
= direcily or indirectly levad of invest in other persons or entities identiflcd iz 2y manner whatioever by or on behalf of the Conspaity (Ultimz= Beneflciaries) or
mwwmmuﬁmhwuwrdhm 1

whall

- Beneficiaries;

{i comparty bave nod received any fusd from any persan(s) or entityies), including foreign emtities (Funding Party) with the undersianding {whether recorded in writing or ofherwise) that he
comparry shall:

= diseetly or indirectly bemd or levest in other persons or entities idemtified in any manner whatssever by or on behalf of the Fusding Party (Ultinate Bencficiaries) of

- provide any guasaniee, seciity or the fike on hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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44, Raflo mnalysis and ita chemeniy
Tation
Particotary *% ehange variamee [rom
March 31, 2001 to Mareh
March 31, 3022 March 31, 2021 31, a1 Remaria
'i'_'_mm Railg 131
| Dl gty watin 137
et pukn 1,33
Pasuarm a1 rENG {21}
Invertoey tmover Fissa HA
Trmsle roccivahla ragin im
Trnds payabls 563
Nei turnever matio 14.29 172,61
Mt profi ewio f0ot)
{Resem on capital smplovert 018 002 774.26%) n capial employed.
atio has increased on ascouni
higher Imsrvements in
year wiich got iquideied in
Retern on mrestimers a7 .05 4332 e,
| Particulars Numerator o | Mareh 30, 3002 March 31, 2021
1 0 | wmerator Trrmomimutor Musnerntar
¥ et i |Gl Andets: Curmed Liabilities | 2,074.34 L1492 A01.38 135713
iﬂcﬂ-ﬂl)'nlﬂcl sl Dt (Bomosringe+Leass Fi:] By F 2.000.08 alka? 2,718.00 BTA.76
Tiility) .
Uit rervice coveraye miks | Mer profT ) for the pear 4 ekt service [Ceerem Lacsea, 110644 21%0 B 130 T3
Non-cask cperating evpenios | bease and Prinuipo] Tepaymons)
a3 depreciation s olher
wmantigtions = Intuneit +Other
Fetmen mn et Tor the [LH.51) SALET {361.53) SE7.80
rade semivable by | Total Credit Sakes e atile 9,969.00 165347 ) 143100
Tradie ‘b Nt Credit purchase e TAla60 1.¥0L0S S TITEL 111325
Met enpital amover rane Nt Revenoe [kom epemiions | Working capital (Cumem Assers- 0.089.00 [T THI0.60 a4 15
[ Mes proffi ratio (151} 996509 [(262.53) 7,620,659
Feturn o capital employed maz 151470 477 47418
[ Return on iovesimens [ 416 320 6. 18
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Spofon Legistics Privats Limited
Naotes to the Finencial Statements for the vear endesd March 31, 2022
FAL wovount b FNR Mfillions anders otherniee svaned]

di First fime adoption of Tnd A5
Mﬁuﬁﬂmfwhmmﬂﬁhﬁll.m:fﬂvm}hwbm prepared in sccordance with Ind AS. For perfods up to and including fhe year ended 31 Marek, 2021, the

eutity prepared its financial sintenents in sceordance wifh accounting sandards notified under sectian 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with pamagraph 7 of the Companies
[Accounts) Hules, 2014 (Indizn GAAF).

Accordingly, the comparny has g d Financial 5t which comply with ind AS spplicnble Mares 31, 2021, In preparing these firancinl siatements, fhe company’s opering balance sheet
was prepamsd s at Agril hmbrhmhrmm4hurm-ﬁmw Ind AS. Mhis note exptains the principal adjustments made by the compeny in restating is Indian GAAP fnancis]
statements, inchuding e balance sheet @ ot April 1, 2020, 31 Merch, 2021 and the fimencial staements as ot and for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Exempdions applled
Ind AS 101 allews firsi-time adopien. certa'n exemptions ffom the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS, Set out belpw are the applicable Ind AS 101 mandstory
excepticns rnd optionnl enenptioes applied i3 tse transition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS.

) Mpnde.ory esceplions te retrosnestive rpoliections

1. Estimeiss
The ewimates e sondimen with tbose made for the seme dutes in socordance with fntinn GAAR st from e Impainmen of famncist sssets based o Expected Credit Lo (ECL) model
wiscre 1plicatinn of Indlsr GAAR ﬂﬁmremﬂtuh:um

The estimates luﬂhhmwmmumuwuhmd—umwm reflect conditions at April 1, 3020 the date of trensition 1o Ind AS, March 31, 2021 and as of Masch 31,
e

0l De-recapnition of financial nssets and (Bnanclal labilithes
The company has spplied the de-recogrition requirements under Ind AS 108 prospectively for mnasctions occurring on or afler the date of transition 1o knd AS.

sk Imd AS optional exemptiom

i Deemed cost-Freviows GAAP enrryies amoart: (PPE and Intangiblc) :
fiud AS 101 permits o first-time adopter to elect 1o coniinue with il carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment s recognised in the finencial sisternents & af he dme of fransétion 1o
Ind AS, measured as per the previous OAAP (indisn GAAF) and use that ax it deemed cost an a1 the date of rnsition after making necessary ndjustments for de-commissioning lnbilies, This
expryiion ean also be used for ntangible, Intangible Asscts covered by Ind AS 38, Accordingly, the company ha elecied to measare all of its property, plamt snd equipment, capital work in
progress and imiangible auets ol their previous AP camying value,

mmmrhdruﬁndhﬁmulminumhnuMIudm 109 an the basis of facts and cirmumutinces that exist af the date of trassition 1o Ind A%,

iil. Bualsess Combinationy

Appendix C to Ind A5 101 comtaing the requirment that an entity should apply b9 business corshination that the company recesnizsd hefoe the dste of tamition 1o Ind AS. The ke requinements
e as Follows:

i) A tirst time adopber may eect not 50 apply Ind A% 100 retroapectively to past businzs combinationsi.be { business combination that necurred belore the dste of ransition o Ind AS). However,
12 Frst time addoptor restabes aiy business combinations %o comply with Ind AS 103, it shall restate wll lamer business combinaticas und shall slso apply lnd A% 110 finm the sme date,
Accordimply, ihe company han elocied 1o opt for il hansition option.

) Lransition to [nd AS - Reconcilintiony
The: following reconcilistiona provide o quantifiention of tbe effect of signifcan) differences arising from the iransition from previoas GAAP to Ind AS in sccordanoe with Ind AS 101:
L. Meconciltation of balance shest as at April 1, 2020 (date of tmnsition 1o Ind AS)
ii. Regoncilimtion of balance sheet na ol March 31, 2021
i, Recanciliation of staterment of profit and Joss for the year ended March 31, 2021
Iv, Reconcilistion of statement of cash fiows for the year ended March 31, 2021




Spotne Logisties Privare Limived
Nutes to the Financlal Statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN eyt fn N M liows waleas pélierwing siried)

A6 First thne adopdion of Ind AS eomtlnwed)

Recanciliation of balnes sloeet ns ot April 1, 2020

Particnlnr Footmnies Indian GAAP Iaid AS aal jnstments Ind AR
ASSETS
Non-current aescts
Property, plant and equipmen 18040 18040
Geadwill BaLOl - LETRH
Other intangfhle assels 57.56 - 5134
Righi of use asets | &2 - TH2.00 V92,00
Intargible assets under deveiopsnent | - 79
Financial nvsets
Tevestments 21596 . 215,96
Dibser financial mesets 1 17548 (52.65) 120184
Tax suswts (net) Ly Z W76
Other nssetn 17,07 - 17.87
Todal Nen- eurrent ausets 1ATLA4T 73935 256053
Current asels
Fimanginl sssetd
Trade receivahles 10 147991 (27.88) 1 25244
Cash und cxsh eqmivalents 148 - 106,48
Oitiver financial assets 1 2a04l ShR 315.7%
Dibver assets 146,44 - 14444
Tatal furrent miets 199334 3152 1,024, 74
Tatal Aseis 2AdT 17087 A4,585.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Enguiry
Edquity shore capitsl 178,52 7 17842
Other Eguilty 0227 (276.95) 12532
Totnl ruity I78.7% {276.93)] 501,84
LIABILITIES
Nan= current lnblltles
Fimancinl liabilities
Baortowings 1,113.75 . 1,113:75
Lense Fabilities 3 . 544,55 544,58
Provisions 56,90 {10.1%) 56,72
Dieflerad ta fighilities (et} B (9.56) n7a7 711
her meon-current liabilities 3 BT (8.77) -
Total mom-gurrent labilites 1,169.46 75168 1,922.13
Current liabilithes
Financial liakilities |
Borrowings B4B10 - BAL1G|
Lezse linkilities 2 - 2080 28568
Tde payabiles
Tetal cutstanding dises of micre emerprises-and amall esterprises g .
Total outstanding dues of creditors aiber than mécro enterprises and 5
amall ; B4).58 SE Bai. 14
Onher financinl liabdlities 03.50 - B3.50
Provisices 28.20 AL %38
ter current tinhilities 3 4546 {13.29) 35,17
Total current fabilifies 186647 28513 116159
Total flabilities 0892 1047.81 4,083,73 |
Tatal equity nnd Bshifitles SAlLT1 JIuze A55a3T)




Spoten Logistics Privots Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yenr enied March 31, 2022
FAN ameur fn INT M ans unless ankerwise sed)

46 First thme sdoption of Ind AS (rontinued)

Eegonc|Sation of halance sheet as st March 3, 2021

Parficulars Fontwotes Indian GAAF Tl A% adl Justments Ind AS
ASSETS
Mon=current aiveds
Property, plani and equipment 15221 - 18231
Goodwill 4 1696 124 62820
Other intangible nasets TR - a2
Right of wse assets 1&1 - Y0589 0G5 B9
Imtangible seaets under develapment 647 - 467
Financial zenets
Investments 21596 - 215946
DOtlyer finmicial sssets 1 pithel ] {100.38) 1329
Tax assels {nel) /T . mm
Ocher weneis iy | - 20,78
Tuotal Non- carrest Assets 1647 RI6.TS 14112
Currend assets
Firmmcinl assets
Trade recelvahles 10 165065 35 [EIARE
Cash and cash eguivabents 2829 - st el ]
Oiher financial esets 1 417046 (ER S| 55647
Otbser asacts 20337 - 20537
Tatal enrrent asiets 250097 bR 2,600.28
Total Assets 410843 31608 S0IAD
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity sharg capital 198,26 - 198.26
DOther Egpaity 36,74 (251.24) 47550
Total equity 2500 (251,24 673,76
LIABRILITIES
Nen- current Unkilltles
Fimancial liabilitics
Borrowings 1] 02667 a8 105548
Lease fabilities 2 . Gl 45 G046
Provisions 1t GO (4.64) 515
Defered tax Habilities (net) L] {%8.0R) 135859 el
Oiher pan-cusrent lishilities 3 26,57 {36 57) x
Tatal mon-gurrent labilties 97588 41778 1,790.60
Current labilitles
Financial liabilities
Besronwinga 0333 - T03.33
Lease liahilithes 2 . 3zE 3182
Trade paysbles
Tental outstanding dues of miom enterpsises and small enterprizes 15,30 N 1538
Total outstanding dues of crediion other than micro eiterprises and 5 =
sl ereipcken Lo 42,58 136437
Otiver finnncial ahikities 120,70 - 120,70
Provisicma n 9,64 119 303
Cher current labilitien 3 36,70 [7.00) 20,68 |
Total cwrrent Halrilities 1.107.55 340.50 255714
Total linbilities A 183,41 1,167.33 4350.73
Totul equity snd lahilities A.10A.40 5024.50




g odon Logistics Trivate Limdted :
[dotes i the Financlal Statements for the yoor ended March 31, 2022
(AR amonsnd i TV M TNams iviess atherurse shmied)

46 First thrse siboption of Ind AS (centinwed)

ReconelTatbon of statement af profit and lows for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars Footmites Indlam GAAP Ind AS sl justments Tnil A%

Ingome

Revenue from operationg 5 758086 ik 3 TA20.69

Chiber Incame & 3.20 13153 26.73

Tntal Income 7,584 06 63,35 764742

Expenses

Freight, handfing and servicing cou i 6,059,540 (34230 5727481

Empiloyes henefits expense L&l 75810 nm L0

Finance costs 2&6 e 136,48 36541

Deprecintion aod amoriimtion expenae 1&k4 38402 3667 0179

Oiber expenses 2 373,52 1164 395,16

Tatal capenses 781558 15548 197107

Lows before exceptionnl items and ux IMH _(aen

Exceptional iems

Laoas befre tix (231.52) 210 (313.45)

Tax expense, comprising:

et tax 1152 - 11192

Defermed mx 3 (B8 14) et |1 T3040

Tatal tax expense (V1) 2378 (84,90 G, 12

Luss fer the year (V= VV1) l'-"-lll’ (26253}

Other eomprehensive income

() Ttem that will mot be reclrssified (o profit or loss in sabsequent years:

(i} Re-measirement bosses om defined berefit plons - 1003 10,03

{i) Income tax relstisg to tems that will not be re-classfied to profit or loss = (3.30) (3.50)

Oiher comprebensive loss for the year k] = 6531 653
|_Total comprebensive o for the yenr ELEEn ol ()

d) Feotnotes to the reconcifation of equity s at April 1, 2020 and March 31, 2021 and profit or leis for the year ended March a1, a1

1 Securby Deposit
Under fhe Eniisn GAAT, interest free ssouity deposits glven for lease { that e refandable in cash and an completion of its enn) are recorded a1 their anaection valie, The company has fair
valued thesr financial pssets e, security deposit given mder Ind AS. As @ result of the fiir valuation, there has been a reduction in the balence of security deposits 1o the extent of INR 2228
million and INR 30,39 millicn impact of which was taken 1o ROLY asset a3 o Apel 1, 2020 and March 31, 2021 respectively. The (mpact of INR 6.1 miliion relating to wmwinding of security
depoait snd INR 6. 16 million relating to amortization of ROL assets hus been taken in Prafit and oss during the fimancial year 2021,

1 Lense impoct as per Ind AS 116

Under previous GAAP, where the compeny &5 a bessee were classified cither as an operating ot & finance fease, Under Ind AS 114, all armangement that fafls under the defimition of lease except
thase for veiich, shomi-erm lease exemption or low value exemption Is applied, the cormpany will rocognise a right-ofiuse assets and a lease Habiliny on the fesse commencement date, Right-of-ae
dusetn is mmortised aver (1o Iekse (ST on & straigh line basis and hease linhility s msasured ut amoetised cost ot the present value of futire lease paymenis. Further interest {s socrued on such lease
Tinbility. O traruition, the adoption of Ind AS |16 resulted in the ROL) assets of TNR 7492 00 million and lesse Hahilities of INR £34.24 million, Depreciation expense of INR 321,76 million has
been rocognised regamiing ROU during the year ended March 31, 2021, Also, imerest expenss of 1NR 43,57 million on lease Habilsties has been recogised during the year ended March 31, 2021,
There were certain lense confracts terminated during the {2 resulting e recognition of g of INK 047 mifticn, Alza, the coenpany has apytied the practical expedient of rent relsled concession
il bas pecorded 3 gain of INR 16,53 milioa, Toe net expense wa reveresd with moount of INR 354,80 million for an adjussoert with lonse Habilites ad fransfer 1o ROU respectively.

3 Lewse Equalization reserve
I.rndarMGMP.MWWMWMWM.MMMUﬁWhMMN is im Tine with iaflation, v thers i no requinament for creation of
mmuimmwhmmmmummﬁmmumuhummn.ﬁmmmmmmmmm impact an retained amdigs,
During the year ended March 31, 2021, the compamy has booked lease equalisation expense smder the head rental expense amoanting to INR 1152 milllon which has been reversed,

Diefierved tax charged under the company previous GAAP an such rent equalization reserve b ali been reversed,

4 Gondwill
Under previous GAAF, the company used to amortize Gondwill over a period of five years, Under Ind AS, Goodwill related to ather than Goodwill arising on smalgemation is not amertised but
fested for impaintent on m snnual basis except for the goodwiil which s mill being amorstized under the appraved “Court of Scheme”. Therefice the Goodwill amortisation under Indisn GAAF
fo the yess ended March 31, 2021 smounting 1o INR 11.24 miltion has boen reversed. The company has recogsiised defermed tax m the carmying value of the goodwill oy on the balamce shee! date,

5 Revenue wd justment
Undsr previous GAAP, the compnny used b reeond the revenue ance cargs was defiverad 1o fhe customers. Under Ind AS, the company has changed the revenoe recognition policy nnd on the
de of mumsition 1o Ind AS, the Conypany has recarded addisions] revenise theough retsined eamings amousting ta INR 29 million with a coresponding impact [ othor financial aseets s
additional cont amounstiveg to INR. 18,56 million with @ cormesponding impact in trade payables, During ihe year ended March 31, 2021 the company records fhe additional sevemue of INK 36.82
million aod ndditional cost of INTL 2402 eillion,




Spoton Logistics Private Limited
ek bo the Financial Statements for the year ended Marel: 5o, 2022
AN ommairet fa TNR MiTions meless osherwing imied) '

45 First time adoption of Ind A% (continued)

& Bermowings

Under previous GAAF, the compamy carried the deberiy gt ity face value of TN 950 million. Under TND AS, ms the debenture aptecnient contaies cerisin gl aptions available with lenider
:ﬁdnm“mﬁmﬂhdﬂmmﬁwmmhhﬁﬁnMﬂlbmm-ﬂﬁmlmrmhﬂhﬂkwmﬁum;hmn
F4.60 milion has been booked and finance cout by way of p ing foes hoaked preve Iy amounting to TNT | 1,82 million has now been reverssd fior the year ended March 31, J021, The
mh@ﬂdﬂnﬂmmmhaﬂﬂhﬂhﬁcﬂﬂpﬂuﬂﬂlﬂjlmﬂlm.

7 Employer bemefits expense
Unier previous GAAP, the company has not roconded the ESOP expesse. Urder IND AS, tie ESOP has been classified ns equity setibed rosclling in crestion of Empleyen siock opticn
outstanding seeount smausiting ta MR 46.05 millkon as oa tse date of rmsition 1o IND AS fe. April 1, 2000, Subsequently, the ESOP expense under the lead employee benefil expenie bas been
booked smoumting do TN 26.4 million for the year ended March 31, 2021.
The employee beneflf coma is increased by INR 10,03 million due 1o remessurement gain on defined benefit plans has been recogeised In the OC1, In addition, hesis the acturial valuation of
Mﬂmm.hﬂlmmWhhﬂmliﬂm

B Deferred tax Gebility (net)
Previous GAAP reqaires deferred brx accousting wsing the profit and hoss necour appraach, which focusts oo differences between taxabbe profis and accousting profits for the periad. Ind AS 12
reguires entities o nocount defirred taues iing the halance sheet approach, which fncuses om leim porary differences between the carmdng smount of an asset o liabifity in the talance sheet and it
tnx basa, The spplication of Ind AS 12 approach hes resulted in necegnition of defemed tax on mew temporary differences relating to various transiticn adjustments which are recogrised in
correlstion b the umlertying transaciion either in retained enmings as & stpanite eomponent iz equrty. Theee ks an fmgpect of INR 21707 mitlien ms on April 1, 2020, Sebsequently, company has
recognised figbility of INTL 84,67 million in finarcial year 2021

9 Other comprehenyive income
Doth poder Indzan GAAP and Ind AS, the company tecspased costs rrizeed 12 1l pusi-creslevment defined benpfil plan oo a0 sctuarial beis Unider Indfian GAAP, the entire cout, incleding
achamrisl gaing smd lowses, sre charged i prodit o Joss, Ary remeasurenents comprizing sctuarial guin and insses, he effect of the nsset ceiling, excluding mmoumy inchuded in net interest on the
et defined berelit abiBty and the reosn on plan wssen cxcloding amoemes inchided in net irerest on the et defined benefi liabil%y wme recoguised imumedintely in e balance sheet wili o
romespeadiig debit or credi i retained earmings dirough OCT Thus The employes banedit costs {net of tax) s incromied by INR 6.53 million dun io remessurement gain an dofined beoefit paax
has been recognized in the OCL

1 Trade receivabiles

Under bidian GAAD, the eompany has crested provision for impairmest of recehvables on ense to cass hasia. Under [nd AS, impainnent allowance s bewn determined based on Expucied Credit
Lrw, Model (ECL). There bs an ingpact of NI 2786 million on jis trade receivable as on Apeil 1, 2000, Subsequently, company has charged provision of TSR 1164 millicn in financial year 2021,

11 Pravisien for employee benefits )
Under Ind AS, the company hos revabued its provision for employee benefits and nccordingly bovked an reduced an expense by INR .44 million wilh o comesponding imguace taker i provisions.

12 Recnncilintion of statement of cash Mows

Particnlar Indian GAAP | 1 adjustments Ind AS

Far the year ended March 31, 2021

et cash genermed from operating activities 383 43353 67295
et cash genernied (msed in) investing sctivities {33.06) (TRTT) {113.83)
Net cash genernted {used in) financing sciivites (8251} (354.81) (437320
Net Inerese in caah und casl eqoivalents 1218 - 121,78
Cash ared cash equivalents as at Apeil 1, 2020 10 48 - 10648
Cnsh and ensh equivalents a5 at March 31, 2021 24,29 - 249

Summary of Significant accounting policies (refer Note 2.3),
The sceompanying notes are an integral part of the Finnmclal Stremonts.
As per cur repor. of even dute attiched:

For 8, Batlibol & Assoclabes LLP

Chartered Accounianty

[CAl Firm registration mamber: IELWM
P W

For and on behall of the Board of Director of

Direcion
DIM: 07168138
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Diute: Wiay 28, 2022



